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Qiu Jiangang
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On behalf of the Board of Directors of CNNC International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2010.

URANIUM RESOURCES BUSINESS

2010 heralded the year of development of the Company’s uranium
resources business. Following the successful reinstatement of the
exploration licences of our Mongolia uranium resources project, the
Company is pushing negotiations with the Mongolian government in
resolving the various issues of reserves assessment and joint venture
development in order to secure the establishment of a joint venture
company as well as the mining licence.

During the year, we have also successfully obtained from our parent
company 37.2% of a uranium resources project in Niger, Africa, which is
the first overseas uranium resources development project of the PRC.
Currently, this project is in the trial production stage with the first
uranium product produced at the end of 2010.

We have also commenced our overseas uranium product trading business
and procured 300 tonnes of uranium products in 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement £ /& E £ (continued &)

RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group reported turnover of
approximately HK$168,048,000 (2009: approximately HK$136,571,000)
and gross profit of approximately HK$18,820,000 (2009: HK$3,643,000).
Total comprehensive expense attributable to owners of the Company for
2010 was approximately HK$48,863,000 (2009: approximately
HK$39,153,000). The Group’s revenue in 2010 was primarily derived
from the die-casting business of our group’s subsidiary.

ADJUSTMENT OF BOARD LOTS

To facilitate trading in and promote liquidity of our shares among
investors, the board lot of our shares was changed from 5,000 shares to
1,000 shares on 2nd August, 2010.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS AND CONCLUSION

The Group is striving to develop overseas uranium resources business.
With the Mongolia project and 37.2% uranium project in Niger in hand,
we will continue to identify more suitable uranium projects of premier
quality. Together with our developing uranium product trading business,
we are making steady progress in the uranium resources business . In
respect of the die-casting business, we are in the process of undertaking
a thorough review to set its long-term targets. We have also commenced
our study in extending and deepening our sectors of operations to
develop projects of the uranium product processing and nuclear energy
compliant industries, expand our scope of operations and secure
impressive returns for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my heartfelt appreciation to our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their long-standing supports and my gratitude to
the Group’s management team and staff for their endeavours and
contributions in the past year.

Qiu Jiangang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31st March, 2011
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Management Discussion & Analysis & 2 & 5 & & 2 17

MARKET OVERVIEW

In order to satisfy the burgeoning development of the nuclear power
industry in the PRC, the Group is striving to identify and expand overseas
uranium resources projects of premier quality. In line with the continual
increases in the number of nuclear power plants planned and under
construction, the international market prices of uranium have surged
significantly in 2010. Demands for uranium resources as well as the prices
of uranium are expected to sustain their growth in the long term.

During the year ended 31st December, 2010 (the “Year Under Review"),
having overcame the adverse impacts of the overseas automobile and
construction industries in 2008 and 2009, the die-casting market
improved in line with the global economic recovery and coupled with the
robust domestic automobile industry, die-casting orders resumed back to
its pre-financial tsunami tracks.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

On 25th March, 2010, the Group was successful in its acquisition of
37.2% equity interests in Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A. (“SOMINA")
from its immediate controlling shareholder, CNNC Overseas Uranium
Holding Limited through the acquisition of a subsidiary known as Ideal
Mining Limited (“Ideal Mining”). SOMINA, a company incorporated in
Niger, Africa with limited liability, is the registered holder of a mining
license for a uranium ore mine located in the Agadez region of the
Tchirozerine department of Niger. The full consideration of HK$414
million was satisfied by the issue of the three-year 2% convertible note of
the Company. With exploration work finished, the first lot of uranium
concentrates was produced under trial run by the end of 2010. The full
production is expected to commence in the second half of 2011. The
Group has commenced uranium product trading during the Year Under
Review. In September 2010, through a wholly owned subsidiary, the
Group has acquired 300 tonnes of uranium products.

The operating results of the Group for the Year Under Review were
primarily derived from the die casting business. Driven by robust domestic
consumption and buoyant overseas orders, the die casting department
strived to expand its market coverage. Turnover for the Year Under
Review rebounded significantly by approximately 23.0% to approximately
HK$168,048,000 (2009: approximately HK$136,571,000). The Group
was committed to cost control by optimising processes, automating
procedures to cut expenses and switching resources to products with
higher gross profit. Gross margin increased from approximately 2.7% for
the corresponding period of last year to approximately 11.2% for the
Year Under Review despite raw material price hikes, domestic labour
shortages and wages surges.
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Management Discussion & Analysis & ¥ & 57 58 & 7 HT (continued )

Other income for the Year Under Review increased by approximately
83.7% to approximately HK$12,323,000 (2009: approximately
HK$6,709,000) due to the exchange gains from the appreciation of
Renminbi deposits and the receipt of insurance compensation for the
claim of damages arising from flooding in 2008. Despite the increase in
turnover during the Year Under Review, selling and distribution expenses
fell by approximately 5.7% to approximately HK$5,088,000 (2009:
approximately HK$5,396,000) as the Group has tightened control on the
expenses.

In June 2009, the Group acquired Western Prospector Group Ltd.
("Western Prospector”), a company then listed in Canada and its
subsidiaries hold uranium exploration licenses in Mongolia. During the
Year Under Review, the full year administrative expenses of Western
Prospector and its subsidiaries were consolidated into the Group’s
account. Administrative and other expenses for the Year Under Review
rose by approximately 17.7% to approximately HK$43,608,000 (2009:
approximately HK$37,038,000) which was primarily attributable to the
service fees of intermediaries and professionals in respect of the
acquisition of Ideal Mining.

During the Year Under Review, share of loss of an associate of
approximately HK$8,937,000 (2009: nil) was related to the equity share
of loss of SOMINA since the Group acquired Ideal Mining until the end of
the year.

The above-mentioned convertible note issued to CNNC Overseas on 25th
March, 2010 were appraised to have an effective interest rate of 8.80%
per annum. While no interest was payable in respect of the portion of
effective interest rate in excess of the annual coupon rate, the amount in
respect of such portion was required to be charged to the income
statement and be reversed and credited to reserves upon redemption
under Hong Kong Accounting Standards. As a result, the finance cost for
the Year Under Review increased by approximately 279.9% to
approximately HK$36,366,000 (2009: approximately HK$9,573,000).

The income tax credit increased to approximately HK$7,777,000 (2009:
approximately HK$1,265,000) due to the reduction of deferred tax during
the Year Under Review. The exchange gain arising on translation of assets
in foreign currency to presentation currency amounted to approximately
HK$6,216,000 (2009: approximately HK$1,237,000). Summing up the
combined effects of the foregoing, total comprehensive expense for the
Year Under Review amounted to approximately HK$48,863,000 (2009:
approximately HK$39,153,000).
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Management Discussion & Analysis & 2 J& 5 &8 & 7 1T (continued )

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The Group will make its footprint in overseas uranium resources business
and serve the needs of China’s nuclear power development by identifying
more suitable uranium projects of premier quality, in addition to the
existing Western Prospector project in Mongolia and the 37.2% uranium
project in Niger. With the already-developed uranium products trading
business, the Group will have a very broad horizon with exploration,
mining, milling, processing and trading capacity. In respect of the die-
casting business, the Group is in the process of conducting a thorough
review to set its long-term targets. Taking advantage of the trend of
nuclear power development in the PRC, the Group have also commenced
its study in extending and deepening the sectors of operations gradually
and developing towards the directions of uranium product processing
and nuclear energy compliant industries. The Group will continue to
utilise its listing platform in expanding its scope of operations as well as
striving to secure impressive return for the shareholders.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31st December, 2010, the Group employed approximately 1,219

(2009: 1,158) full-time employees of whom 26 (2009: 25) were based in
Hong Kong, 1,158 (2009: 1,092) were based in the Group's factories in
Dongguan and office in Beijing, the PRC and 35 (2009: 41) were based in
Mongolia. Total staff cost incurred during the Year Under Review
amounted to approximately HK$60,761,000 (2009: approximately
HK$46,151,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group’s employees are based
on their performance, working experiences and conditions prevailing in
the industry. Depending on the financial results of the Group and the
performance of individual employees, eligible staff may also be granted
performance bonuses, in addition to basic salaries, retirement schemes
and medical benefit schemes. The Company will also study the basis of
granting discretionary share options according to the business
development to raise staff morale. To raise work quality and management
abilities of its employees, the Group provides job rotation, in-house
training and external training courses to employees.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2010, total bank borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$16,000,000 (At 31st December, 2009: approximately
HK$16,000,000) which would be due within one year. The bank
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, and bear interest at
rates calculated with reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus basis.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

The Group had net current assets amounting to approximately
HK$574,625,000 (At 31st December, 2009: approximately
HK$634,970,000) and a current liabilities of approximately
HK$149,188,000 (At 31st December, 2009: approximately
HK$44,417,000) as at 31st December, 2010. During the Year Under
Review, the Group acquired of approximately 300 tonnes of uranium
products which were kept in stock at 31st December, 2010. The uranium
products account for the main part of the increase of inventories of
approximately HK$285,230,000 at 31st December, 2010 compared to
31st December, 2009. Debtors’ turnover days decreased from about 104
days as at 31st December, 2009 to about 80 days as at 31st December,
2010. Capital expenditures on plant, equipment, exploration and
evaluation assets, leasehold improvements and construction in progress
totalled approximately HK$33,230,000 during the Year Under Review
(2009: approximately HK$212,576,000), of which approximately
HK$416,000 (2009: approximately HK$95,000) was related to the
construction cost of the new manufacturing plant situated in Shanghai,
the PRC. Commitment to purchase additional property, plant and
equipment that had been contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements as at 31st December, 2010 amounted to approximately
HK$4,980,000 (At 31st December, 2009: approximately HK$17,952,000).

During the Year Under Review, net cash outflow from operating activities
amounted to approximately HK$278,833,000 (2009: approximately
HK$12,206,000). The Group's cash on hand and bank balances decreased
from approximately HK$607,626,000 as at 31st December, 2009 to
approximately HK$306,797,000 as at 31st December, 2010 after the
acquisition of the uranium concentrates.

Total shareholders’ funds increased from approximately HK$857,595,000
as at 31st December, 2009 to approximately HK$950,839,000 as at 31st
December, 2010, mainly due to the conversion option arising from the
above-mentioned convertible note issued and the deemed contributions
from equity participants arising from the acquisition of Ideal Mining and
net asset guarantee compensation from equity participants according to
service agreements during the Year Under Review. As a result of the issue
of the above-mentioned convertible note, the gearing ratio, in terms of
total debts to total assets, increased to approximately 0.35 (At 31st
December, 2009: approximately 0.14) as at 31st December, 2010.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save from the acquisition of Ideal Mining mentioned above, there were
no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies for the Year Under Review.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s income, expenditure of raw materials, manufacturing,
investment and borrowings are mainly denominated in USD, HKD,
Mongolian Tugrik and RMB. Fluctuations of the exchange rates of
Mongolian Tugrik and RMB against foreign currencies could affect the
operating costs of the Group. Currencies other than Mongolian Tugrik
and RMB were relatively stable during the Year Under Review, the Group
did not expose to significant foreign exchange risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy for hedging significant
foreign currency exposure.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no significant change in the capital structure of the Group
since 31st December, 2009.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group’s assets during the Year Under Review
(2009: Nil).
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2010 (the “Year Under Review") except for
disclosed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) are
collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims to enhancing the
Company'’s value for stakeholders. Roles of the Board include reviewing
and guiding corporate strategies and policies; monitoring financial and
operating performance; ensuring the integrity of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting systems; and setting appropriate policies in
managing risks of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of seven members including two
executive directors, two non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs"”), whose details are set out on pages 17
to 21. Members of the Board have different professional and industry
experiences and backgrounds so as to bring in valuable contributions and
advices for the development of the Group’s business. More than one-
third of the Board are INEDs and one of the INEDs has appropriate related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely information of
the Group through management and are able to obtain independent
professional advices on issues whenever deemed necessary by the
directors.

Regular meetings are held by the Board at least 4 times a year to discuss
strategies and business issues, including financial performance of the
Group, and additional meetings will be held when necessary. The
Company has held regular board meetings in accordance with the Listing
Rules and the CG Code and also the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, formal notice and board meeting
documents are also given in advance to all directors. During the Year
Under Review, the Board held 4 regular meetings. Members of the Board
can attend the meetings either in person or through electronic means of
communication. A record of the directors’ attendance at regular Board
meetings is set out on page 16.
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(continued #8)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
in order to reinforce their independence and accountability. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing.
The Chairman leads the Board’s workings and proceedings, while the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing the Group's
strategies and policies and for conducting the Group’s businesses.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all the directors, all
the directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. With the assistance of the accounting
department, which is under the supervision of the management of the
Company, the directors ensure that the financial statements of the Group
have been properly prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The directors also ensure that the
publication of the accounts of the Group is in a timely manner.

A report of the independent auditor on the Group'’s accounts is set out in
this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report 182 & J8 & (continued )

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard investments
of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The system of internal controls aims to help achieving the Group’s
business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial information.
However, the design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement in the financial
statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the Year Under
Review on the effectiveness of the internal control system covering all
material controls in area of financial, operational and compliance controls,
various functions for risks management as well as physical and
information system security.

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives, safequard
asset against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure proper maintenance
of books and records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations.

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and risk
management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and effective.
Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control on difference
areas had been submitted to the Audit Committee. It is noted that there
is no significant areas of concern which may affect the effectiveness of
the internal control system.

Throughout the Year Under Review, the Board is satisfied that the Group
has fully complied with the code provisions on internal control as set out
in C.2.1 of the CG code.

Annual Report 2010
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(continued #8)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year Under Review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s
auditor, Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

12 S5 Bl B <=
REBEE A AR T RBEHED » BE

BT R 2 B WA T

Services rendered

Fees paid/payable

P iR 4 AR 75 Eft S
2010 2009
—T—TF EekRs
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Audit services EaH RS 1,350
Non-audit services (i.e. Professional Service) IERET RIS (FHERT) 1,773
m:l 3,123
AUDIT COMMITTEE BEEESE
The Company’s Audit Committee was first established in December 2002 E-FF+ZAK

and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
Group's financial reporting system, internal control procedures, risk
management, assessing the adequacy of the human resources of the
Group’s accounting and finance department and maintaining good and
independent communications with the management as well as external
auditor of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Chen Xinyang

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of the
Company. Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry has appropriate related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them
is employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditor of
the Company.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Year Under Review. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for
noting and for action by the Board where appropriate. The attendance of
each member is set out on Page 16.

During the Year Under Review, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Group's interim and annual report for the year ended 31st December,
2010 and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.
The Audit Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control system and made recommendations to
the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report 182 & J8 & (continued )

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s Remuneration Committee was established in September
2005. Its current members include:

Mr. Han Ruiping (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Chen Xinyang

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the remuneration committee are the INEDs
of the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their specific
remuneration package for directors and senior management, including
terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension
rights, compensation payments and other long-term incentive schemes by
reference to market conditions, performance of the Group and the
individual and corporate goals and objectives as set by the Board from
time to time.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year Under
Review. The minutes of the Remuneration Committee meeting were
tabled to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where
appropriate. The attendance of each member is set out on Page 16.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the policy for the
remuneration of executive directors and senior management and assessed
the performance of executives.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the Company’s
bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to receive notice of and to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint another
person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. Shareholders who
hold not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen, any
member from the respective committees, must attend the annual general
meetings of the Company to address shareholders’ queries. External
auditor shall also be invited to attend the Company’s annual general
meetings and are available to assist the Directors in addressing queries
from shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and the
preparation and content of their auditor report. The Chairman of the
Board did not attend the 2010 annual general meeting (“2010 AGM")
due to his illness. The 2010 AGM was chaired by Executive Vice President.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders. The
information provided will not only comply with the different requirements
in force but to provide additional information to enhancing
communications with shareholders and the investment public. It is part of
a continuous communication that encompasses meetings and
announcements to the market as well as periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary announcement of results and interim and annual

REERAGRRERRBZE

ARARREHREFEREARARBRRZE
VRFMENESE MEABEBERTAR
TTARDERIEBRIN - B Al fR 58 50 8 10
BEBRREARKREEZ BB  ARAE
BEEREZLMBRAMUAREEN S DM
HEALEERESETHEAREARR
RERBEEREBRE -

reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which

comprehensive information of the Group is provided.

ZN/NSSIDIN

NEIWEE

HAEE2M@

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, AUDIT EER BRERZEERHINE
AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEES’ EEEEZ2HBELA &
MEETINGS
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings Meeting
EER B%EEE FMESE
HERER - Eof
Total number of meetings held EEFENRTZEH 4 2 1
during the Year Under Review FE Y
Number of meetings attended: il /N
Chairman and Non-executive Director TEBEHNTESE
Mr. Qiu Jiangang BB 2 M % £ 4(100%) N/A N/A
AN NEH
Chief Executive Officer and Executive THAREBEIITES
Director
Mr. Han Ruiping BIn it 4(100%) N/A 1(100%)
TiEA
Executive Vice President and HITRIEHEEHTES
Executive Director
Mr. Xu Hongchao FFALH ST & 4(100%) N/A N/A
NEMA NE A
Non-executive Director RHTES
Mr. Huang Mingang HERAEE(ZE—FF 1(25%) 0(0%) 0(0%)
(resigned on 1st October, 2010) +A— AT
Mr. Chen Xinyang BRIBLEE(ZE—F N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 1st October, 2010) F+HA—HLEMT) TEA NEA TEA
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAEBITESE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry iR BB S 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%)
Mr. Cui Liguo BRI L 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%)
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%)




Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Qiu Jiangang, aged 56, currently serves as the deputy general

manager of China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC”). Mr. Qiu
joined CNNC in 1982 and had served as the director of the Overall
Planning Department of CNNC and the assistant to the general manager
of CNNC before his current position. Mr. Qiu has been the chairman of
SUFA Technology Industrial Co., Ltd. CNNC ( P sk R EER MDA
FR/AF]) (stock code: 000777), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, since December 2005. Mr. Qiu has over 29 years of experience
in the nuclear industry. Mr. Qiu graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in 1982 with a bachelor degree in nuclear energy engineering.

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Ruiping, aged 48, currently serves as the Chief Executive Officer

of the Company and a director of China Uranium Corporation Limited,
CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited (“CNNC Overseas”) and Société
des Mines d'Azelik S.A.. Mr. Han joined CNNC in 1989 and had served as
engineer, senior engineer of China National Nuclear Corporation ( 1 E#%
T X4 27]) (the predecessor of CNNC), deputy director of the Nuclear
Fuel Department of CNNC and deputy director of the Planning
Department of CNNC before his current position. Before joining CNNC,
Mr. Han was a trainee researcher of China Institute of Atomic Energy (
Bl R T RERI 2R 3ERT ). Apart from serving CNNC, Mr. Han also served as
the deputy commissioner of the Science and Technology Division of the
Overall Planning Department of Commission of Science, Technology, and
Industry for National Defense of the Peoples’ Republic of China (COSTIND)
during 1998 to 1999 and a researcher of the Overall Planning Department
of COSTIND during 1999 to 2004. Mr. Han has over 22 years of
experience in the nuclear industry. Mr. Han graduated from Wuhan
University in 1986 with a bachelor degree in Science. He also holds a
master degree in management science and engineering from Harbin
Engineering University.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management & 5 N & % B 12 B 1 (continued #)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)
Mr. Xu Hongchao, aged 40, currently serves as the Executive Vice

President of the Company, a director of CNNC Overseas and Société des
Mines d'Azelik S.A.. Mr. Xu joined CNNC in 1993 and had served as the
accountant of the finance department of China National Nuclear
Corporation ( F B#Z T %4272 7)) (the predecessor of CNNC), the deputy
director of the Assets Management Division of the Investments Operations
Department of CNNC, the director of the Overall Management Division of
the Policy Research and System Reform Department of CNNC and the
director of the Investment Division of the Assets Management
Department of CNNC. Mr. Xu was a director of Sanmen Nuclear Power
Co., Ltd. ( =F9#ZE AR A ")) and SUFA Technology Industrial Co., Ltd.
CNNC (7 1z # B Bt 5% B X B {9 B IR 2 7]) (stock code: 000777), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu has about 17
years of experience in the areas of project investment, assets management
and securities investment. Mr. Xu graduated from Hengyang Engineering
School in 1993 with a bachelor degree in industrial management
engineering. He also holds a master degree in business administration
from the Tsinghua University. Mr. Xu is also qualified as a senior
accountant.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Xinyang, aged 61, was a director and general manager of
China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation (B R F 8¢ LT % & 7))
("CNEIC") until August 2010. Mr. Chen joined The Second Engineering
Institute of Nuclear Industry (#% T % % — W JT &% 51 Bt ) (“SEINI") as a
technician in 1979 and was transferred to CNEIC in 1982. During his
tenure in CNEIC, Mr. Chen had also served as economist, senior
economist, deputy commissioner and commissioner. Mr. Chen was also a
director of CNNC Finance Company, Ltd (R #%Z 87 % B R & £ 2 7))
(“CNFC") and is currently the director of Yenaut Industrial Co., Ltd
("YIC"). CNEIC, SEINI, CNFC and YIC are members of CNNC. Mr. Chen
graduated from Tsinghua University in 1979 with a bachelor degree in
engineering and physics.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management & 5 N & % B 12 B 1 (continued #)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry, aged 63, currently serves as an
Executive Director & Deputy Chairman of Worldsec Limited, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 0001), Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings
Limited (stock code: 215), New World Department Store China Limited
(stock code: 825), SPG Land (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 337), Cheong
Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited (stock code: 1038), TOM Group
Limited (stock code: 2383), all being companies listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Excel Technology International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8048),
and Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited (stock code: 8109), all
being companies listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. He is
also an independent non-executive director of BTS Group Holdings Public
Company Limited, a Company listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand.
Mr. Cheong has over 30 years of experience in securities industry. He is
also a member of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal, a member
of the Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission and
a member of the Disciplinary Panel A of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Cheong holds a Bachelor of Science
(mathematics) degree from Chelsea College, University of London and a
Master of Science (Operational Research and Management) degree from
Imperial College, University of London.

Mr. Cui Liguo, aged 41, is currently a partner of Guantao Law Firm, a
law firm in Beijing, PRC. He has been practising law since 1993. Mr. Cui
founded Guantos Law Firm in 1994. He has over 16 years of experience
in legal sector. Mr. Cui is also an independent director of UBS SDIC Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (B#IHEE S EEFR A7) an independent
non-executive director of APT Satellite Holdings Limited (stock code:
01045), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
independent director of SDIC Xinji Energy Co., Ltd ( Eli& ¥ a2 R DA
fR27]) (stock code: 6019189), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and an independent director of SUFA Technology Industry Co.,
Ltd. CNNC ( PEZERRRI R B RN BRAF ) (stock code: 000777), and
Beijing Navinfo Co., Ltd. (1t R4 B RN BRAR] ) (Stock code:
002405), both companies being listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
He is also a member of the Finance & Securities Committee of All China
Lawyers Association; a vice general secretary of the Chamber of Financial
Street; and the legal counselor in the internal control group of securities
issuing of Guodu Securities Limited and Bohai Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Cui
graduated from the China University of Political Science and Law with a
bachelor degree in laws in 1991. He also holds a master degree in laws
from the same university.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 41, currently serves as a deputy general manager of
Beijing Fuchengmen sales department of Great Wall Securities Co., Ltd.
(EMEBEHBREMLAT]), a company Mr. Zhang joined since 1994. Mr.
Zhang has over 17 years of experience in the securities industry. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Renmin University of China in 1996, major in
commercial and economic management. Mr. Zhang holds the
qualification of settlement practitioner granted by Beijing Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management & 5 N & % B 12 B 1 (continued )

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai, aged 60, is the Chief Operating Officer of the

DieCasting Division of the Group. Mr. Tsang started to work in the metal
working industry in Hong Kong in 1981. Mr. Tsang was a co-founder of
the Group and joined the Group in 1993. He was an executive director
and chairman of the Group. He resigned as an executive director and
chairman of the Group in December 2008, but remains to serve in the Die
Casting Division of the Group. He is responsible for the strategic planning
and development of the Die Casting Division of the Group. Mr. Tsang
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in 1974. After completion of his Master of Business
Administration Degree in the University of Windsor, Canada, in 1977, Mr.
Tsang joined an international oil company in Hong Kong and gained
valuable experience in corporate planning and finance. Mr. Tsang is a
member of the North American Die Casting Association.

Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor, aged 55, is the President of the Die
Casting Division of the Group. Mr. Kong joined the Group in 2002 and
was an executive director and chief executive officer of the Group. He
resigned as an executive director and chief executive officer of the Group
in December 2008, but remains to serve in the Die Casting Division of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall management of the financial
operation and business development functions of the Die Casting Division
of the Group. Mr. Kong graduated from University of Saskatchewan,
Canada in 1980 with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Kong was the General Manager of InfoChain Express division,
an information technology business unit at Avery Dennison Corporation,
a Fortune 500 US based company, and has over twenty-two years of
manufacturing management experience. During his past years of
experience, he had successfully deployed several key projects such as
computerization of production system, certification of ISO 9001qualify
system, construction of new 150,000 square feet plant facility and
restructuring of a world class manufacturing team. Mr. Kong is a member
of the North American Die Casting Association.
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Paras

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management & E N 5 A & 12 B 57 (continued #)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued) BREEE -

Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan, aged 52, is the Company Secretary and Financial ~ ZESp{=5t 4 5255 AR A FIME R I E
Controller of the Company. Prior to joining the Company in November B e R AR T NFE+— AIMALXR
2008, he had over 28 years of experience in auditing, accounting and R F] - B A E28FE B BAZE - S LB
financial management. Mr. Li is an associate member of the Institute of EELB - L+ AERE LB BITIE ST
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of @A @@ ENEASAMASTE RS
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Liis a 8 o & % 4 2 % 5 3 & f3 3 K ZImperial
graduate of Imperial College of the University of London and holds a  College * BX{§ R} 28+ &7 -

Bachelor of Science degree.
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Directors’ Report EER/mEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
the Company'’s principal subsidiaries, an associate and a jointly controlled
entity are set out in notes 39, 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, the Group acquired 37.2% equity interest in Société des
Mines d’'Azelik S.A. ("SOMINA") from its immediate holding company
through the acquisition of a subsidiary known as Ideal Mining Limited
(“Ideal Mining”).

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2010 are set

out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 30.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements. There was no movement in the
Company’s share capital during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$816,492,000 (2009:
HK$812,257,000).
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Directors’ Repor’[ %%%i&%% (continued #5)

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Chairman and non-executive director
Mr. Qiu Jiangang

Executive directors
Mr. Han Ruiping
Mr. Xu Hongchao

Non-executive director
Mr. Chen Xinyang (appointed on 1st October, 2010)
Mr. Huang Mingang (resigned on 1st October, 2010)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Qiu Jiangang, Mr. Chen Xinyang and Mr. Cui Liguo will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Each of the current executive directors and independent non-executive
directors had entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing 5th November, 2008 which shall
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other
party not less than three months prior written notice.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the period
from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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Directors’ Report % % E‘ #& tl:lt % (continued #&)

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31st December, 2010, none of the directors nor their associates had
any shares or underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. No share option
has been granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES
Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”

above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report ZE E B E E (continued )

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
At 31st December, 2010, the register of substantial shareholders

maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows
that the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

ETERE
R-ZE—ZF+-_A=+—H KBARQ
AIRBEEAFMBEGNENBMGETTEZ
FERRELEMAEEZE UTREEANE
ARBIHMEREARARACBRITRAZIAER
ERRKAE -

3e
A2 m] R EE 0.0 2 BER

Number of  Percentage of the

issued ordinary issued share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held of the Company
i EEAT BERATE8T

B R 2 & &iE ik BB BRAEE DL

CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited Corporate interest 266,372,273 62.07%

("CNNC Overseas”) (note)

RRZENHEERBER AR ((REEND(HE) RAER

China Uranium Corporation Limited (“CUC") (note) Corporate interest 266,372,273 62.07%

hEEZEINREFR A E (B2 ]) ) NECIE: 3

China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC") (note) ~Corporate interest 266,372,273 62.07%

PEZTIEEEQE ((PRER]) TR

A

Note:  CNNC Overseas is the immediate holding company of the Company, which is wholly owned

by CUC, whereas CUC is wholly owned by CNNC.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31st December, 2010.
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Directors’ Report ZE E B E E (continued &)

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 23rd January, 2010, a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company and CNNC Overseas entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which CNNC Overseas agreed to sell its entire
100% equity interest in Ideal Mining, an investment holding company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands, to the Group at a consideration to
be satisfied through issuance of a convertible notes to CNNC Overseas
with a principal amount of US$53,281,853. Details of which are set out
in notes 24 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai (“Mr. Tsang”) and Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen Trevor
("Mr. Kong"), former directors and existing shareholders of the Company,
compensated the Company of approximately HK$30,748,000 in relation
to a guaranteed sum. Details of which are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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Directors’ Report EE B E F (continued )

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Qiu Jiangang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31st March, 2011
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Independent Auditor's Report % #Z A0 k&=

Deloitte.
=g

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CNNC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNNC
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 30 to 95 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2010 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ 37 1% EX Bl 3R 25 Z (continued )

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2010, and
of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
31st March, 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 44 2@z &

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

2010 2009

—T-%F —EThEF

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000

Bt 5F BETR BT T

Revenue W s 5 168,048 136,571
Cost of sales 3 € gl R (132,928)
Gross profit EF 18,820 3,643
Other income and gains E AU A R I3 6 12,323 6,709
Selling and distribution expenses HELRDHEMY (5,088) (5,396)
Administrative and other expenses THEEMBEX (43,608) (37,038)
Share of loss of an associate FELE S N T2 EiE 15 (8,937) —
Finance costs B & B AR 7 (36,366) (9,573)
Loss before taxation 4 B B B 1B 9 (62,856) (41,655)
Income tax credit FiEFRIEE 10 1,265
Loss for the year FEREE (55,079) (40,390)

Other comprehensive income Hih2ml A
Exchange difference arising on BE2REBELZ
translation to presentation -
currency 1,237

Total comprehensive expense for the AN A FHEA A © EIEFE R
year, attributable to owners of the ~ MM X %58
Company (48,863) (39,153)

Basic and diluted loss per share GREAN R EEEIR 11 (GLEPRNE A ()Y (HK10.1 cents 711L)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 44 Bt %k R &

At 31st December, 2010 A -_ZT—ZTF+-_HF=+—H

2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETNF
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 7 BT & oT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRG 12 107,855 143,557
Exploration and evaluation assets ME R HEE 13 184,598 165,568
Prepaid lease payments AN E KB 14 = 5,887
Interest in an associate AL RNl o e 15 455,142 —
Deposits paid on acquisition of WHEWMZE - BE &
property, plant and equipment FREEN TR 17 875 519
3559
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 18 309,232 24,002
Trade and other receivables and EUE 5 B N E b B UL
prepayments FRIA LA KR TR A FRIE 19 44,778 47,304
Prepaid lease payments B AERE 14 — 133
Amounts due from shareholders JE WS A% 3R EIE 20 30,748 —
Investments held for trading BEEERE 21 367 322
Bank balances and cash BITHEHBRRIE S 22 306,797 607,626
691,922 679,387
Assets classified as held for sale BIELEEE 12 31,891 —
575387
Current liabilities RENBE
Trade and other payables and EE SRR N E i E
accruals SRIA LA K JEFH R K 23 33,669 28,371
Taxation payable FESFLIR 181 46
Convertible notes R EE 24 99,338 —
Unsecured bank loan EILFARITER 25 16,000 16,000
a7
Net current assets mBEEFEHE 634,970
Total assets less current liabilities %2 & Eif K & & & | 1,323,095 | 950,501
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible notes B R 24 365,819 90,279
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIAA G 26 6,437 2,627
52,906
Net assets BEEFE 857,595
Capital and reserves BARRGEE

Share capital R& A 27 4,292

4,292
Reserves H1E& 28 946,547 853,303
Equity attributable to owners of the XA Bl #E B A FE 1L # & -
Company 950,839 857,595

The consolidated financial statements on pages 30 to 95 were approved 30295 E 2 &AM BKHERE N T ——
and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 31st March, 2011 E£=HA =+ —H KR E S L F K5

and are signed on its behalf by: B THTHEERREEREE
Han Ruiping Xu Hongchao

I E AL

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity 44 & A&

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

=

5

B

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHEAELS
Non- Convertible Non-
Share Capital  distributable Merger General notes equity  Translation  Accumulated controlling
Share capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve fund reserves reserve profits Total interests Total
wa -8 TRRER F2R
BEx  RiER BAfE Pk BbtEE s BAGHE E5 Gt Ritind &% REiEn &%
HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ERTR  EETR BT ERTRT ERTRT ERTRT BN BN ERTR ERTR  BETR  BETR
(Note 27) (Note 28) (Note 28) (Note 28)
(BfaE£27) (P9at28)  (MPsk28)  (PBiiEE28)
At 1st January, 2009 R-ZZNF-A-H 3792 316,227 — 16,584 127 7,206 20,370 5,992 99,342 469,640 — 469,640
Loss for the year FERER — — — — — — — — (40,390) (40,390) — (40,390)
Exchange differences arising on AHEREREEY
translation to presentation EXEHE
currency — — — — — — — 1,237 — 1,237 — 1,237
Total comprehensive income (expense) 4 A2 E WA (B%)@%E
for the year — — — — — — — 1,237 (40,390) (39,153) — (39,153)
Issue of new shares BITHR 500 438,500 — — — — — — — 439,000 - 439,000
Share issue expenses BARHEX — (11,892) — — — — — — — (11,892) — (11,892)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 29) Ui i B2 & (Fff 5%29) — — — — — — — — — — 63,071 63,071
Acquisition of additional interests in ~ 2EEI B2 TiEH
subsidiaries (Note 29) — — — — — — — — — — (63,071) (63,071)
At 31st December, 2009
4292 742,835 — 16,584 127 7,206 20,370 7229 58,952 857,595 — 857,595
Loss for the year FRERE - - - - - - - - (55,079) (55,079) — (55079
Exchange differences arising on AHERERESY
translation to presentation EXEHE
currency — — — — — — — 6,216 — 6,216 — 6,216
Total comprehensive income (expense) 4 M2 E WA (B%)@%E
for the year — — - — — — — 6,216 (55,079) (48,863) — (48,863)
Deemed contribution from equity FHBEHBEARMESD
participants arising on acquisition ~ JREHA ARG AL
of a subsidiary (Note 29) BB (R #29) — — 50,723 — — — — — — 50,723 — 50,723
Deemed contribution from equity BREFRAZREEE
participants in respect of the BEMEEMELN
shortfall of the guaranteed net REREABEAN
assets value of certain AR (R 520)
subsidiaries (Note 20) — — 30,748 — — — — — — 30,748 _ 30,748
Recognition of equity component of a BRI EKREFRAHH
convertible note (Note 24) (MisE24) — — — — — — 72,619 — — 72,619 — 72,619
Deferred tax liability on recognition of # 2 a # ik ZERA LS
equity component of a FELHELTHE
convertible note — — — — - - (11,983) - — (11,983) — (11,983)
At 31t December, 2010 R=F-%F
+=ZA=+-8 4,292 742,835 81,471 16,584 127 7,206 81,006 13,445 3,873 950,839 — 950,839
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows G464 BR &€ ng %

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HE =T —ZF+ A=+ —HIEFE

2010 2009
g iRl
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BETT BT T
(Restated)
(E75)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEETR
Loss before taxation b B BT E 1B (PX:319) (41,655)
Adjustments for: L
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMKXEITE
equipment 16,622 16,396
Dividend income i B A (8) (7)
Finance costs Bl & K AR 36,366 9,573
Gain on fair value changes of investments # {’ETET EREZANFEE
held for trading By M= (CD)) (115)
Interest income B U A (2,540) (790)
Share of loss of an associate JE(REEE N R 2 B8 8,937 —
Loss on write-off of property, plant and BEME BE NMKE
equipment ZEE 296
Operating cash flows before movementsin & iE & & & & a2
working capital KERENRE (3.524) (16,302)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEOEm R (283,702) 15,445
Decrease in trade and other receivables and  f& i & 5 BF 70 & E fib g U ;R IB
prepayments A B2 T8 A~ SR IR R A 2,019 7,721
Increase (decrease) in trade and other JEHE 5 BR 3k I b i FR0A
payables and accruals VA K2 J& 51 R 5138 b0 Ok ) 6,629 (18,968)
Cash used in operations KeEEBmACES (278,578) (12,104)
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid BN EHM R EREE (255) (102)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REGERBZ
ACTIVITIES R&F8E (278,833) (12,206)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE W% - HE L& E (14,423) (1,919)
Additions of exploration and evaluation assets A & 8 #k L P H & &= (7,595) (8,193)
Interest received 2 UF B 2,540 790
Dividends received B E 8 7
Acquisition of subsidiaries lhgicding=NC] 29 — (132,499)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES F{Fi3 &5 EE2IRN& % (19,470) (141,814)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bh&EEE
Interest paid 2R FE (2,225) (2,578)
Acquisition of additional interests in EREN B AR R
subsidiaries 29 (63,071)
Proceed from issue of new shares BITHIRATIS A 439,000
Share issue expenses BITRMAX (11,892)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING (A1) RBERIEFEHZ
ACTIVITIES HEEH (2,225) 361,459
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASHAND R&£RIRSZEBY(EL)
CASH EQUIVALENTS WniFE (300,528) 207,439
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AuBAESREASEEY
BROUGHT FORWARD 607,626 400,150
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEEREH 2 E
CHANGES (301) 37
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED IR&€ RIS ZEYsEE -
FORWARD, represented by bank balances HIRTESKRNLIBESARK
and cash 306,797 607,626
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CNNC International Limited

: RZBEBRERA A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 Bf & & & Bt 5t

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

1.

GENERAL

CNNC International Limited (the “Company"”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its shares
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company'’s immediate holding company is CNNC Overseas
Uranium Holding Limited (“CNNC Overseas”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Company’s intermediate holding
company and ultimate holding company is China Uranium
Corporation Limited and A [ 1% T % £ [E 2 7] (China National
Nuclear Corporation “CNNC"), a state-controlled entity in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), respectively.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") for the convenience of the
shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacture and distribution of die casting parts, and exploration
and trading of mineral properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B4 7 ¥} % F 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # & —

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA").

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business Combinations

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged Items

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of Improvements to

HKFRSs issued in 2008

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

HK — Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by

the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations in the current year has
had no material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (as
part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009)

The amendments to HKAS 7 specify that cash flows arising from
changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control, such as the subsequent purchase or sale by a
parent of a subsidiary’s equity instruments, shall be classified as
cash flows from financing activities. Accordingly, acquisition of
additional interests in a subsidiary of HK$63,071,000 paid in 2009
has been reclassified from investing to financing activities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% ¥ R B 5E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

(continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010'

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets®

Financial Instruments*

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets®

Related Party Disclosures®

Classification of Rights Issues’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendments) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement®

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010 and 1st January,
2011, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2011.

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2012.
N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011.
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(as revised in November 2010) adds requirements for financial
liabilities and for derecognition.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% ¥ R B 5E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")
(continued)

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” are subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates to
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the presentation of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in the
Group's consolidated financial statements for financial year ending
31st December, 2013. Based on the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as at 31st December, 2010, the directors
anticipate that the application of the new Standard is not expected
to have material impact on the amounts reported in respect of the
Groups' financial assets and financial liabilities.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 81 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given on exchange of goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% 38 R B 7E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for
sale (in which case it is accounted for under HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”) or when the
investment is designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition or is classified as held for trading (in which case it
is accounted for under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”). Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 &
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 & & —

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)
From 1st January, 2010 onwards, upon disposal of an associate

that results in the Group losing significant influence over that
associate, any retained investment is measured at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if
a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which ventures have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities.

The Group recognises its interests in jointly controlled entities using
proportionate consolidation, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale (in which case it is accounted for under
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”) or when the investment is designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition or is classified as held
for trading (in which case it is accounted for under HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”). Under
this method, the Group’s share of each of the assets, liabilities,
income, expenses and other comprehensive income of the jointly
controlled entity are combined with the Group’s similar line items,
line by line, in the consolidated financial statements. All material
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% 38 R B 7E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of returns and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current
asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.
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CNNC Internatlonal Limited

TERERERA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is included in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or
for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included as
part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% 38 R B 7E (continued #)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on initial
recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration and
evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of exploration
rights and the expenditure incurred in the search for natural
resources as well as the determination of the technical feasibility
and commercial viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
natural resources become demonstrable, previously recognised
exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as either intangible
assets or property, plant and equipment. These assets are assessed
for impairment before reclassification, and any impairment loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 81 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the re-translation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B4 78 5 3% M 5T (continued %)

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale
for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1st
January, 2009, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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FEBERERA A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the
related assets. Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and interests
in a joint venture and an associate, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax
is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 81 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into two categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
loans and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
represent financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 871 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 38 R B #E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, unsecured
bank loans and convertible note are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceed of the
issue of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible note equity reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible note (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes equity reserve until the embedded
option is exercised in which case the balance stated in convertible
notes equity reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible notes equity reserve will be released to
accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and conversion option components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the conversion option derivative is charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 38 R B #E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment losses

Tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is
reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” whenever one of the following
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable (the list is not exhaustive):

o the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expired during the period or will expire
in the near future, and is not expected to be renewed;

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned;

o exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area have not led to the discovery of commercially
viable quantities of mineral resources and the Group has
decided to discontinue such activities in the specific area; or

. sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 871 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
within the next financial year, are discussed below:

Estimated impairment on exploration and evaluation
assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment when
facts and circumstances suggest the carrying amount may exceed
its recoverable amount. As detailed in note 13, the implementation
of various provisions of the new energy law might affect the
recoverable amount of the exploration and evaluation assets. The
directors of the Company exercise their judgment in estimating the
recoverable amount with reference to a discounted cash flow
analysis, whereas the possible outcomes of the new energy law
were assessed. Where the recoverable amount is less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Estimated impairment on interest in an associate

Impairment assessment is performed when indications exist that
the carrying amount of the investment in an associate may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amount is measured at the higher of
the fair value less cost to sell, which is based on the Group’s best
estimate of the price of the Group would achieve in a sale
Where the
recoverable amount is less than expected, a material impairment

transaction of the investment, and value in use.

loss may arise.

Changes to the assumptions underlying the assessment of the
recoverable value may result in recognition of impairment losses,
such factors may include further delays, increases in the total
forecast cost of planned projects or negative outcomes to
exploration activities, in which the exploration and evaluation
expenditures are considered likely to be recoverable through future
extraction activity or sale where the exploration activities have not
reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the
existence of reserves.
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?‘véf\ é E]f ﬁ‘% 3:::5& %% Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WmRIBEH
Information reported to the Group's executive directors, being the METERSE LD HRIETE MM
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resources FTELERRABIAEBRRITES)
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on EBMER FEEFEEREEZE
types of goods or services delivered or provided. The Group’s MmEIRERNRE  NEBERIEFEE
operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows: 73R R EeSR v B MIE D
ms
. Exploration and trading of mineral properties — exploration . BHEMCEBEDE —HHER
and trading of uranium and coal B =R
. Manufacture and distribution of die casting parts — . RERDHEBEETH —RER
manufacture and distribution of aluminium, zinc and o iEeE - B RSB
magnesium die casting parts
Segment revenue and results S EB U R R AR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AEBRZMNEBZEEDLZ DM
reportable segment. PO
2010 2009
—E-%F ZETHE
Exploration Manufacture Manufacture
and and and
trading  distribution Exploration distribution
of mineral of die casting of mineral  of die casting
properties parts Total properties parts Total
HEREE HERTH MR RERSE
BWEME ESHH @i BEDE EE#H @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR EETR EETR BETT BETT BETT
REVENUE g3 — 168,048 168,048 — 136,571 136,571
RESULTS L
Segment (loss) profit 23 (E18) A& (28,022) 15,284 (12,738) (7,759) (16,827) (24,586)
Unallocated corporate ADEH R
administration costs THEAE (13,752) (7,496)
Finance costs & B A (36,366) (9,573)
Loss before taxation BRI EE (41,655)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies. Segment (loss) profit represents
the loss incurred or profit generated from each segment without
allocation of corporate administration costs and finance costs. This
is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

4 2 @ 5 BUR BRI 3
#IAF - 5 HOUS I FAEE S BE
2 AR - T BIE S R T B
ARBERAZ DR TV HETE
RARREANGETAERHERE
ANEHZHBER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 38 R B #E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continvedy 5. W8 R 53 S & #l o)

Segment assets and liabilities NHMEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by AEBEENBBKEEBEDIL 2N
reportable segment: m
2010 2009
%5 —TTHF
Exploration Manufacture Manufacture
and and and
trading  distribution Exploration distribution
of mineral of die casting of mineral of die
properties parts Total properties casting parts Total
HRREE HERDH BHE RERSH
HENE ESDH @x  BEDE E&E it @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT EBETRT BETR  BETR BETT BT

ASSETS BE
Segment assets DNEEE 964,307 507,976 1,472,283 211,916 783,002 994,918
LIABILITIES Bfg
Segment liabilities SHEE 375,547 45,427 420,974 1,153 43,264 44,417
Unallocated liabilities AnEERE 100,470 92,906
Consolidated liabilities HAaE 137,323
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERSBERRESESBEERM
allocating resources between segments: Bl
e all assets are allocated to reportable segments; and s MBEENKEZZEENE K
. all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than . R_ZEZNFBRTHNATBRKRE
the convertible note issued in 2008 and related deferred tax BRABEEHEBEAEIN FTE
liabilities. The convertible note issued in 2010 was issued for BEIREEEES P - WM E
acquisition of a subsidiary in the exploration and trading of 29FFE - RZE—TEBHITHNA
mineral properties segment as detailed in note 29 and was BREE BAETHRE —HHK
allocated to such segment. RISEEBEMESTOME A
A REATBRBREESEZ S
7B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bl 75 3% 2% BT 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (ontinues) 5. YRR D EEHE
Other segment information HihpEpEE
2010 2009
—E-%fF ZETHE
Manufacture Manufacture
Exploration and and
and trading  distribution Exploration distribution
of mineral of die casting of mineral  of die casting
properties parts Total properties parts Total
HEREE HERTH R RERDE
RENE BEms @it BEN% [RE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR EETR EETR BETT BETT BETT
Amounts included in B IBEE
the measure of SRS ER
segment results or HAZEE:
segment assets:
Addition to non-current  FEFRBEE
assets 33,230 210,021 2,555 212,576
Depreciation and FERER
amortisation 88 16,622 73 16,323 16,396
Interest in an associate  AHBEENE 2
B 455,142 455,142 — — —
Share of loss of an EhHEAR
associate BB 8,937 8,937 — - —
Loss on write-off of WENE  BE
property, plant and REZ
equipment BB 267 29 296
Revenue from major products REFEERZW=R

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major

AEEREETEEMRZBEDITAOT -

products:
2010 2009
b Lol bl —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETF T
Sale of aluminium die casting parts S IR R & ER 14 155,936 127,942
Sale of zinc die casting parts & P R R ER 1 10,726 6,981
Sale of magnesium die casting parts SHE B RS 1,386 1,648

168,048 136,571
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bl 75 3% 2% BT 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continvedy 5. W8 R 53 S & #l o)

Geographical information EEH

The Group's operation is principally located in the PRC and People AERBTZEFBEMNEH(EEEE
of Mongolia (country of domicile). The Group’s revenue by BxR)&E - NEFBIRMERTISE D2
geographical market based on destination of goods irrespective of WHTIBREERZZEME(THE
locations of customers, and information about its non-current FPi2h) AEE  LEBKEEZHE
assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed below: KEI DRI ERBEE 2 ERFEHNNNT ¢

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RMBEFFFRE ERBHEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-%o5 VRN —T-T5 QLIRS

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T EETR BT T
United States of America = 48,723 —
The PRC =8
(country of domicile) (FE2ELEHR) 42,595 107,515
Hong Kong EB 18,444 1,051
Germany = 18,144 —
Italy E N 11,042 —
United Kingdom o 3,005 —
Sweden I B 3,389 —
People of Mongolia e
(country of domicile) (FE2LEHR) 228,052 206,965
Republic of Niger EBR 464,079 —
Others Hity - _
168,048 136,571 757,407 315,531
Information about major customers FHREEEFRZEH
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing HEFEAREFMEKRSEAKE
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: 2 SHE BER10% A ERANAT
2010 2009
bl —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Customer A Z2EA 23,739
Customer B =2 5B 19,112
Customer C 2EC 14,708
57,559
All customers are related to manufacture and distribution of die FrB &P REE RS B S+ 526
casting parts segment. 1ERE -
Note: Only two major customers each contributed over 10% of the total sales during the M : RAFERN RAREX2EF,SEASEZE
year. & @ EE10% A £ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bl 75 3% 2% BT 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

6.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HtbWr A\ RUrs
2010
—F-FF
HK$'000
EETR
Included in other income and gains are the HEmW AR E S BE
following: LA &5

Dividend income from investments held for BIEEBEHRE KRB A
trading

Fair value change on investments held for BIEEEREZATEEZS
trading

Interest income FE YA

Net exchange gain HIRERFE

Government subsidy in the form of AR RBRER
PRC tax refund XA 2 B S B

Insurance compensation received in respect of LA gij & & [ Lk 7K )% B EHIE &
loss on damages to the factories caused by TS Z RBE(E

flooding in previous year

FINANCE COSTS 7. BMERAEX

2010
—g-2%
HK$°000
AR

Interest on unsecured bank loans wholly AR —FABBEENEEIFR
repayable within one year 17
Effective interest expenses on convertible notes 7] # i% Z= 4% ~ B Xl 8 5 52
(note 24) (B 7E24) 36,265

36,366

T—TEEHR

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
BT T

115
790

2,214

2009
—FETNF
HK$000
BT T

100

9,473
9,573
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 8. EEkEENR
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2009: seven) REBRMNEZ(ZEZTNE: ££)
directors are as follows: EEXEENREN e T:
Cheong
Qiu Han Xu Huang Chen  Ying Chew
Jiangang Ruiping Hongchao  Mingang* Xinyang** Henry  Cuiliguo  Zhang Lei Total
(Note (i)  (Note (i)) (Note (i)
Ep Al BT HAE EWEr  RHEE SRR EFE RE &t
(HEEG)  (BEEG)) (B &£ (ii) )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT B%Trn AT BETr BT BT B%TR EETx

2010
—E-FF
Directors' fee EEHS 200 200 150 150 — 200 150 150 1,200
Other emoluments: Hin@ e
Salaries and other benefits HEM R
2R 800 700 550 - — — - — 2,050
Discretionary bonus based BARRE
on individual's a2
performance — 60 150 — — — — — 210
Retirement benefit scheme BIREF
contributions HEdl
#HR — — 28 — — — — — 28
Total emoluments Mews 1,000 960 878 150 — 200 150 150 3,488
2009
—EENF
Directors’ fee EE0S 150 150 114 100 — 150 100 100 864
Other emoluments: Hit &
Salaries and other benefits R
A A — 350 550 - — — - — 900
Retirement benefit scheme RIKEF
contributions BE
138 — — 8 — — — - - 8
Total emoluments [t 150 500 672 100 — 150 100 100 1,772
* Mr. Huang Mingang resigned on 1st October, 2010. * EHREER T —ZSFTA—AHE
% Mr. Chen Xinyang was appointed on 1st October, 2010. *x BRFGEER_T—ZSFTA—ALE
Note WiEE
0] Mr. Qiu Jingang and Mr. Han Ruiping paid all their emoluments to CNNC Overseas. [0} RIS A IR TR X N RS 2 A E S THIZgHh o
(ii) Mr. Huang Mingang paid all his emoluments to Yenaut Industrial Co., Ltd. (ii) HHEAEEXNBREZMEEEHME TRETIEERADA -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 8. EEREEM=2w
(continued)
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, REBMNAAERTMA LS EF
two individuals (2009: nil) were directors of the Company whose MEANT(ZEZENFE : E) AARAQ T
emoluments are included in the disclosure set out above. The EE RECHESEREXEE  Z
emoluments of the three (2009: five) individuals were as follows: ZHAT(ZEZNAF - RAB)HNHE
U
2010 2009
L IR EN —zzag
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTR BT T
Salaries and other benefits I & H A4 9,689
Retirement benefit schemes contributions BOKTE B 5F 8 5 60
9,749
2010 2009
—g-zx JREXIE
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
I P8l EEAX
Emoluments of the employees BEMEN T T
were within the following band: #7l
Not exceeding HK$ 1,000,000 B 38 7% 1,000,000 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 1,000,0017C =
75 1,500,0007T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 753,500,001t 2
78 #4,000,0007C 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of ERAEBYEATIAEESRE
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement BEEHMA LTI HEMBL  EA
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of AREBHINARS LSS BB E -
office. None of the directors has waived any emoluments during FEESEHENERNRETAMLS -

the year.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

9.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

9. KRBIAIESE

2010
—F-FF
HK$°000
EETR
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after 4 N E 18 431 (5F ) ¢
charging (crediting):
Directors’ remuneration (note 8) EE20 & (F1:E8) 3,488
Other staff costs Hi B TR 53,143
Retirement benefit schemes contributions BARKEF T 2R
(note 35) (B 7E35) 3,739
Total staff costs B IR 60,370
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #12 « E MREZITE 28,057
Less: Amount capitalised in exploration and B B R EAREBE ARG
evaluation assets BEZRIE (11,435)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE R & FRoE B

Less: Amount capitalised in construction in
progress

B RERETREBERE AR 2R

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expense

Loss on write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Net exchange loss

Operating lease charges on land and buildings

=2 A B & 2,284
ERARAXZFEMN 149,228
MEME BEEREBZER

BE 3 &5 1B FE
THREFZREHEER

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
BT T

1,772
41,213

3,166
46,151
19,138

(2,742)
16,396
133

(133)

1,670
132,928

296
968
5,422
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bl 75 3% 2% BT 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

10.

INCOME TAX CREDIT 10. IEHER
2010 2009
ol T NF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
EETR BT T
Current tax charge: AN ERREIE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEIEMEH 133
Deferred tax credit (note 26) IR AR I8 (B 5226) (1,398)
Taxation attributable to the Company and its ~ Zx /A 7] & £ Wi B 2 7 fE (5 7 18
subsidiaries (1,265)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made in the A 7N B B A T (B 4F 5 3 4 FE R B
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable MKEERBEER WRES M BE®R
profits or incurred tax losses for both years. KW EAEH BB FGTEE -
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") BIBERFEARLMECEMSHE
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the (IEEMETED REEMRBREN
PRC subsidiaries is 25%. BERGy PENBARNNBEERA
25% -
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates B ZRMEENNRE DIRIESRBE
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. BE B RGHE o
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10.

Statements 42 &

T-FFT-ASt-BLEE

=N ~ 7T ﬁ% 3:::5& i% MTJL E\I (continued #&)

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 10. FiIRBIER @
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss AEEMEHRIREHLEE 2E W
before taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive KA AIEESENT
income as follows:
2010 2009
—T—TF s
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Loss before taxation B B AT B 18 (41,655)
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of AR B EEHE25%

25% FTECHBIE (15,714) (10,414)
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate JEEBE ARz BB 2R E 2,234 —
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 78 =2 Fi U A 2 B1 7% 52 28 (5,492) (2,829)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TAMBERAS 2 M2

purpose 4,387 2,418
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RAERBIB 2RI E 11,064 8,444
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FARINFERERKE

recognised (3.847) —
Effect of tax concession granted KAalHETHEBRRERE

to the Company’s certain subsidiaries BEzZE (899) (120)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMADEEELE 2

operating in other jurisdictions MEARITRME 2 w8 438 1,158
Others Hib 78
Income tax credit for the year AEERBEERE M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. LOSS PER SHARE 1. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable AKABIBAANEBEERERAREEE
to the owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year of 18 75 1R B 4 A & 8HK$55,079,000 (=
HK$55,079,000 (2009: HK$40,390,000) and 429,168,000 shares T E N F  HK$40,390,000) N F A B B
in issue during the year (2009: 401,771,000 weighted average 77429,168, 000 (—ZEZ N F : R = F
number of shares in issue during 2009). TN F B E T IR 5 #401,771,000
RIFHE -
The computation of diluted loss per share for both years does not AERAEBRABEREEENGRER
assume the conversion of the Group’s convertible notes as the WA w2 D) R EF SR R
conversion of the convertible notes would result in a decrease in BRI o
loss per share.
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/ASSETS 12. V¥ BERRE BSETE
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE BREEHESE
Plant and
machinery  Furniture
Leasehold ~ Mining  and other and Motor  Construction
improvements Structure equipment  fixtures  vehicles in progress Total
BER
#aa R
HEVELE BESE HbRE REE RE  EEIR E
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr AETrn  ABTr EETr A¥Tr EETr BETr
CosT BE
At 1st January, 2009 R-ZEZnE-F—H 19,973 — 162,943 16,782 1,457 34,146 235,301
Exchange realignment EXHE Q) - (29) 2 - %) (39)
Additions NE 748 — 1,040 720 - 95 2,603
Transfer HE 1,309 = — — — (1,309) —
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries Y B Fi B 7 55
(note 29) A (H3129) — 4691 37,438 1,058 1218 — 44405
Write-offs bk — — (30) (142) (520) — (692)
At 31st December, 2009 RZEENE+ZA=1—H 22,029 4,691 201,362 18,416 2,155 32,925 281,578
Exchange realignment EYEE 204 174 3,178 1,574 615 — 5,745
Additions NE 352 — 10,148 484 2,800 416 14,200
Transfer to assets classified as held for ~ EAF{EHEEE
sale - — — — — (33,341) (33,341)
At 31st December, 2010 RZT-ZF+-A=1—H 22,585 4,865 214,688 20,474 5,570 — 268,182
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERRE
At 1st January, 2009 RZTENE—-FA—H 14,905 — 83,980 11,747 1,328 7337 119,297
Exchange realignment [E 5 & 3) - (13) 2 — — (18)
Provided for the year FEEE 1,631 329 14,694 2,221 258 — 19,138
Eliminated on write-offs g Eag] — — (16) (65) (315) — (39%)
At 31st December, 2009 WZEENE+_F=1-8 16,538 329 98,645 13,901 1,271 71337 138,021
Exchange realignment iR 169 38 1,087 258 34 — 1,586
Provided for the year ERAE 1,304 330 22,646 2,828 949 — 28,057
Eliminated on transfer to assets dassified 8 A 5 {1 & B A 1 ¥ 4
as held for sales — — — — — (7.337) (7.337)
At 31st December, 2010 WZE-ZF+-A=1-H 18,011 697 122,378 16,987 2,254 — 160,327
CARRYING VALUES RE{E
At 31st December, 2010 WZ_Z2-ZF+-A=1-H 4,574 4,168 92,310 3,487 3,316 — 107,855
At 31st December, 2009 R-EENE+-A=1—H 5491 4,362 102,717 4,515 884 25,588 143,557
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 871 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Mining structure
Leasehold improvements

Over 20 years

Over the term of the leases, or 5
years, whichever is the shorter

Plant and machinery and 6%—-20%
other equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

18%-33%
18%-25%

Construction in progress represented costs of construction of
factory premises erected on a piece of land held by a subsidiary of
the Company. These factory premises were constructed for the
manufacture and distribution of die casting parts. During the year
ended 31st December, 2007, the subsidiary was named as a
defendant in a District Court action in the PRC in respect of the
alleged breach of contractual undertakings of several construction
contracts. All construction costs in dispute were properly accrued in
the consolidated statement of financial position. Due to significant
delay in the completion of the construction works, a number of the
relevant assets were determined to be impaired. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$7,337,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31st December, 2007.

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the District Court in
the PRC ruled in favour of the plaintiff. The subsidiary and its legal
counsel appealed to the Intermediate Court in the PRC but the
Intermediate Court in the PRC still ruled in favour of the plantiff.
Accordingly, additional construction costs of approximately
HK$2,661,000 in dispute were accrued in the consolidated
statement of financial position; while additional penalties of
approximately HK$1,704,000 and additional legal expenses of
approximately HK$198,000 were charged to profit or loss during
the year ended 31st December, 2008. The judgment from the
Intermediate Court was final.

VE BERRE EEFE

BB EHESEEw
BAEZIREN FllWE- - BE KK

T B oA R B 0 R 4F B R A5
R B B A EREEATF
EEHEHTE -

fElE 451 20F A
HEMERE HEFHHSF
(AERE&E B%E)
E RS MEAM 6%-20%
B
N E 18%-33%
B 18%-25%

HMREIEERBE T IRANZE X
O RWBARRNEEZZSTLF
T AT —HBIEFEEREM A
b —IBFHFAFRAEEAN - FEFZ
PEHIEKRAERERBEE_ZZ L
FH+ZA=+—RALFELHATEM
NFERARRE o 5% F I8 G BUR TR R
FEzRTITHEBELBEEREHR -F T4
HMEECKRE At B#E2_ZEF
tF+-_A=+—HLFECER
BB 18 4978 17,337,0007T °

RZZEZNGFE - BB G AR HRER
EABF o ZMBAR REEEERM
mMABEFRARERIED &R P
Bl ARERIDHFRSE A -
it FERZ2EINIREALEE
2,661,000 R &R & BT MR A K &
& T EE SN E] & #9758 #1,704,0007T &
BONE R B BB 198,000t R E =
TEENE+ -_A=+—-BIEEE
HAER AR ARERELNOE R
BEEHIR -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/ASSETS

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)
As at 31st December, 2009, the directors of the Company

conducted impairment review of the construction in progress. The
recoverable amount based on fair value less costs to sell estimated
by the directors of the Company by reference to a valuation carried
out on that date by Greater China Appraisal Limited (“Greater
China"”), independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group is higher than the relevant carrying amount as at
31st December, 2009 and, accordingly, no further impairment was
recognised.

In October 2010, the directors of the Company planned to dispose
of the land together with the construction works thereon. The
Group committed to this selling plan and actively seeking a buyer.
Subsequently, on 21st January, 2011, the subsidiary entered into a
sales agreement with a third party to dispose of the land together
with the construction works thereon at a consideration of
RMB55,000,000 (equivalent to HK$64,748,000). Thus, the carrying
amounts of the land and the construction works were known to be
recovered through sale as at the end of the reporting period and so
the carrying values of construction in progress and the prepaid
lease payments (Note 14) have been transferred to assets classified
as held for sale at 31st December, 2010.

12.

ME BERREG SESHE
BREHEZEE®
ARARESER_ZZTNE+=-A
—+t—H RAEE 2 EETRETR
ERN AEECZEREIRERNR_ZZ
NF+ZA=Z+—HZRAFENER
HEAEETEFHBEBYISEERE
EGEMEEFEASR 2R (EE])
REBETHNBEMETE  EZE AWM
BEMpersg8  LLMEEMELN
Z2EE RZEENF+_A=1+—
AERAFERDEKAGTE 2K
EHEEERNAEORBDE - At I
mE—HERME -

RZZE—ZTF+ A ARAEFE
HESETER T E2EETRE-
AEBAFETHEEHERERS
FER-BEERNR T ——F— A
—t—B - EEKBRARIHEE=FET
VHERZE HEABIHERT M
F2EEIR REAARE
55,000,0007T ( 8 % 5°64,748,000/%
TL) o Eitt - R EHE R 2 B+
WEEEIRCEAENEBLEM
e Bt R —FF+ A
—t+—B ERIRRRBENEERE
(M) 2 EAECERESEAR
ELEZEE -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/ASSETS 12. V¥ BERRE SETE
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued) BREHEEEw
As at 31st December, 2010, assets classified as held for sale R-E—ZEF+-_A=+—"HEESD
comprise: BERABEHEEEMT
HK$'000
BT T
Construction in progress previously included in property, BEFBEEDE  MENZH
plant and equipment ZIERETIE 26,004
Land use rights previously included in prepaid BAEBFEERNEENRIE
lease payments 2 T A 5,887
31,891
13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 13. BIIRRIHEE
HK$'000
BT T
COST o
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) U BB BT B 2 R B BB A (B9 7%29) 154,633
Additions INE 10,935
At 31st December, 2009 R-_ZETZAF+-_RA=+—H 165,568
Additions NE 19,030
At 31st December, 2010 A—E-FTF+-_A=+—H 184,598

The Group's exploration and evaluation assets were mainly arising
from the acquisition of the Western Prospector Group Ltd.
("Western Prospector”) (together with its subsidiaries known as
“Western Prospector Group”) during the year ended 31st
December, 2009, details of which are set out in note 29.

AN AE20FT L A B 2 B IR R AT
HEEXTZARBEZE-ZETNF+=
A=+ — 8 F [E BT K B #Western
Prospector Group Ltd ([ 75 &8 2 & )&
HMBARSBIAIMARIER])ME
o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

13.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

The Western Prospector Group’s uranium exploration licenses were
temporarily suspended in April 2009 and July 2009 due to the
purported non-compliance with Law on Minerals, Land Law and
Law on Radiation Safety of Mongolia and purported breaches of
various laws of Mongolia respectively, reported by the inspector of
the Mineral Resources Authority of Mongolia (“MRAM"). All of the
suspensions were lifted in early July 2009 and November 2009
respectively, and the MRAM re-registered all such uranium
exploration licenses on 12th November, 2009. Details of these are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 27th July, 2009,
21st August, 2009, 13th November, 2009 and 29th December,
2009.

On 15th August, 2009, the Mongolian’s Law on Nuclear Energy
and Mongolia’s Law on Implementing Procedures of the Law on
Nuclear Energy (collectively referred to as the “New Laws") came
into force. Under the New Laws, the People of Mongolia (the
“Mongolia State”) has the right to take ownership without
payment of either not less than 51% of the shares of the Group’s
Mongolia subsidiaries if the Mongolia State’s funding was used to
determine the resource during exploration, or not less than 34% if
the Mongolia State’s funding was not used to determine the
resource during exploration.

Based on management’s discussions with the relevant Mongolian
authorities and the advice from its Mongolian legal advisers,
following the re-registration of the uranium exploration licences,
the license holders will have the right to apply for mining licenses
to mine or extract the resource identified in the relevant areas
covered by the exploration licenses once consensus is reached
between the Group and the relevant Mongolian authorises in
respect of the implementation of various provisions under the New
Laws.

During the year and as at 31st December, 2010, the directors of
the Company carried out negotiations with the relevant Mongolian
authorities in respect of the implementation of various provisions
under the New Laws. Although the outcome cannot be reasonably
determined, the directors of the Company, after taking into
consideration of recent negotiation with one relevant Mongolia
authorities and legal advice and the discounted cash flow analysis,
are confident that the Group’s interest in the exploration and
evaluation assets will not be materially affected.

13.

BERRFEEE®
BESHEEERERR(MRAM])
BEABEL ABRAIEEEALRE
BFRHBERL THEAREERE
EZ2ERERZES & EE  Hib
RBHAAUEIIR_ZETZNFHEAR
“TETNFLABERF ZFEEE
RZZETAFLtAR-_TENF+—
BOEE MR_ZETAE+—A
+ZH MRAMEE#H B2 HzSE
HMEBT A - B BEIEREAEER
—EETANFLA-T+RH ZZEZ
NFNAZ+—HB —ZZEZhLF+—
A+=BE=ZZEZENF+ZA=+N
BR#EZRER-

RZZEZAFNATER RE0K
AP RREBBERELNEREF
HOEBI(RREFOEPI DB £k - 1R
EEED EHBER(R &) AER
BrIRAKERE WM B QRN H
51% (WA ERERTHRAILEES
BWER) T DRZF R #34%
(MR RBEFLIEHRETLHES
BRER) <A MBANK-

~ /7

REEEEEEAEAGERZ MmN
EHREZEBERZER AEEHASF
METERREEIEN T ZEBEX
R BR - BEE R E A R R T
AIER A ERAANGHERBMH
REFAIRE - AR R BEERIRER A
TR EZ AR A ER 2 ER -

REAERR-_ZE-—TF+_A=1+—
B ARAREFHRERZRIERAE
FEFADI N Z BRI IEEETTRER -
HABRAEAERTE BARAE
EREBOPE-—EATLERERE
BRZEBRLMBRRESREINE
REASERYRLRFHEEE 2 #S
B IEXBNERTE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

14. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The amount represented payments made to acquire a medium-
term land use right (the “Land Use Right”) in the PRC after
deduction of a government grant of approximately HK$8,335,000
(2009: HK$8,335,000), details of which are set out in note 36.

The relevant government authorities have not granted formal title
to the Land Use Right to the Group. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the absence of formal title to the Land Use Right
does not impair the value of the relevant properties to the Group.
The directors of the Company also believe that formal title to the
Land Use Right will be granted to the Group in due course.

The prepaid lease payments are amortised over the term of 50
years on a straight-line basis and are analysed for reporting
purposes as follows:

14.

EAEERIE

FRIBFE R AR R B A R B & b 55 A
([T AED HIRBEEEDE2L
8,335,000/ 7L (ZEZ L4 : 8,335,000
B BRI - BREFEENH
F£36 °

BRBRAHFARAAANEERLE i
EREZEAFE - AAREERR
MAMB L EREZ CAXETS
BYAKENBEHEDELTRE - K
AREFTRE AEEBREE R
fRER LA T ERE-

BNEERBEDAERER L IOER
2505 F I R o

FREEE
mBEE

Non-current asset

Current asset

2010 2009

=L PN —==n%
HKS$'000 HK$'000

i hhel BT
5,887

133

6,020

As at 31st December, 2010, the carrying value of the prepaid lease
payments has been transferred to assets classified as held for sale
as set out in note 12.

WoZ—ZF+-g=+—8 BN
T FOE 2 AR A 2 8 I 120
OB AK R E 2 AR -

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. RBE AT Z#ER
2010 2009
“E—TF mkdks
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Cost of unlisted investment FEETHRE ZKAK 463,865 —
Exchange realignment FE & 214 —
Share of post-acquisition loss DU 12 B 1B (8,937)

Interest in an associate REEE RN T 2R

455,142 —

During the year, the Group acquired a 37.2% equity interest in
Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A. ("SOMINA") through the
acquisition of a subsidiary known as Ideal Mining Limited (“Ideal
Mining”), as detailed in note 29(i).

AP 20T L A E B R A F R
FERWE—HWBAR A RERIEE
ERAR([EAEREZED W EESociéte
des Mines d'Azelik S.A. ([ SOMINA 1) Z
37.2%H)HE R o
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 15. REBIEATIZHEE®
Details of the Group’s associate at 31st December, 2010 are as RZE-—FTF+A=+—H K&
follows: BB NRFERT:

Attributable

Paid-up equity
Country of registration registered interest held
Name of associate and operation capital by the Group Principal activity
ESE 3 L]
Bt NS 28 of it B & & 2 B & M % A iRt FEER
SOMINA Republic of Niger African Financial  37.2% Mining
Community
Franc (“XOF")
500,000,000
SOMINA JE A /R L FEY 500,000,000 37.2% EERK

FEMEFIHR
BER (7

L] )
The summarised consolidated financial information of SOMINA is SOMINAZ 8 5 47 & BT & & ¥ 2 71 40
set out below: ™~
2010
—B-%F
HK$'000
BETT
Total assets AL E 3,357,124
Total liabilities waEE
Net assets AEFE
Group's share of net assets of an associate KEEERBENR Y BERE
Revenue L& =
Loss for the period BN EE [ 24,024 |
Group's share of loss of an associate for the period AEBEHAREEE AR 2 EE
16. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 16. REREHNERZER
As at 31st December, 2010 and 2009, the Group had interests in RZF-—ZFTFERZFFALF+ZA
the following jointly controlled entity: =t—H XEERTIHREHE
%%ﬁ%ﬁ
Attributable
Paid-up equity
Name of jointly Country of registration registered interest held
controlled entity and operation capital by the Group Principal activity
E#E xEHE
HEEHEREEE 2R REEZME RS FifsEILIEtE TEEH
XXEM LLC People of Mongolia Mongolian Tugrik 50% Provide powerline
("MNT") 5,825 support for the
Group
XXEM LLC 5 5825 XHEIME 50% REBRHEER
7 ( [BEEER e
=)

71



-
CNNC International Limited
FRZBEEREERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B4 78 5 3% M 5T (continued %)

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

16. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 16.

(continued)

The financial information in respect of the Group’s interest in a
jointly controlled entity which is accounted for using proportionate
consolidation with the line-by-line reporting format is set out

below:

EXTE

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Current assets
Other receivables and prepayment

Bank balances and cash

Current liability
Other payables

Net current liability

Revenue
Other income

Expenses

17. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, 17.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The deposits were paid by the Group in connection with the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for production
facilities in the PRC. The outstanding consideration committed are

shown as capital commitments in note 33.

NHEEEHEREZ#E#RE @

BERASERAREZEHEENZERZ
MBEERBEZHINGT  EAMBKE
FAL Gl &R AR R - WA D THT R

2010 2009
—E—FF ZEThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
EMEBEE
W - WERE&EE 38,111 31,416
mEEE
H b fE W I R T RIE 166
RITHEHR R 2 2,305
2,471
mE B &
oAb & RRIE 6,381
mEBEEFE (3,910)
27,506
2010 2009
—E—FF ZEThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
W g _
H At W _
=3 2,825
KEYE BRERREBEHFZ

&

BHEEAREER -

AEBSNZAT2HEBREBALRS
BzWE BMERRBUABIESLEE
R o RMEIE AR 2 RN M FE33A
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. &E&
2010 2009
ol Fl —TTAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Raw material B # ¥ 9,122 6,228
Work-in-progress Pt 14,495 9,447
Finished goods 2K &
— Uranium concentrates — & B 278,684 —
— Others — Hfh 6,931 8,327
309,232 24,002
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19. FEWE SRR H it FEU R IE
PREPAYMENTS URFEARIE
2010 2009
Dbl —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Trade receivables FEWE 5B 38,814
Deposits paid AN 3,316
Other receivables Hifb 3,002
Prepayments TES RIAE 2,172
47,304
The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 90 days to its trade KEEBTHE S EF30HE90HH
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables FEEH RREHE REXEAH
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting RELEMEINZ EBWE ZERFEER D
period: T -
2010 2009
b Dbl —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
0 to 30 days O0H ZE30H 15,671 12,179
31 to 60 days 31H £60H 11,616 12,613
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H 7,044 9,818
91 to 120 days 91H =120H 1,326 2,684
Over 120 days tBiE120H 1,277 1,520
38,814
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will understand the EBEWNFEP 2R ANEBETHE
potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. ERFPZEEEZIREAEARE -
Credit sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit AEEMABRIFERILHENEFE
history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. HERHEE RFEFNERRERE
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9. FEWE ZARF X H th FEU R IF

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that trade receivables at
the end of the reporting period which are neither past due nor
impaired are recoverable based on the past repayment pattern of
corresponding customers and subsequent settlement.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$7,147,000 (20009:
HK$14,453,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which an impairment loss has not been recognised. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired is
as follows:

LA R T8 R IE )
AKRABIEERE RSB E RS
WARBH R ERE 2 ERE SRR
BERERR ZAEMZKER KK
B BRI E A o

RBEEEH AEENEREZEX
#BEE AR B REEAB 7,147,000
TL(ZEZNF - B ¥14,453,0007T) 19
EWHRIEE @ BEXAEET RER
WEEE AEBRHZEHBETIEAR
ETHE AR Y o

E@BERTAREZEEKESER
ZBRHER

2010 2009

—z-zx BRI

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETR ok

31 to 60 days 31HZ60H 3,378
61 to 90 days 61H £90H 6,871
91 to 120 days 91H £120H 2,684
Over 120 days HBim120H 1,520
Total et 14,453

The directors of the Company considered that trade receivables at
the end of the reporting period which are past due but not
impaired are of good credit quality based on subsequent
settlement.

ARAEZERA CHHERT IR
BZRWE SRR RBEMEEE
TEERIZEEEER -

Trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies TXHINEEEEER 2NEEE
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities bz BETIERKRE SRR RE
are set out below: & U SR IA -
MNT us$ Euro
E+#ER EP BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT A¥TrT A¥Trx
As at 31st December, 2010 R-ZE—FTFE+-_A=+— 955 596 1,292
As at 31st December, 2009 R-ZEENF+ A =1+— 1,516 724 2,107
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20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS

21.

In prior year, Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai (“Mr. Tsang”) and Mr. Kong
Cheuk Luen Trevor (“Mr. Kong”), former substantial shareholders
of the Company, entered into (i) an agreement with the Company’s
immediate holding company CNNC Overseas in the purchase and
sale of the Company’s equity interests; and (ii) an agreement
incident to the purchase and sale agreement with the Company for
guaranteeing the audited consolidated net asset value of the
Company’s major operating subsidiaries in manufacture and
distributor of die casting parts segment, including United Non-
Ferrous (Overseas) Limited and its subsidiaries, of not less than the
sum of HK$189,674,000 (the “Guaranteed Sum”) as at 3rd
December, 2010. If the actual amount is less than the Guaranteed
Sum as at 3rd December, 2010, each of Mr. Tsang and Mr. Kong
agree to pay to the Company half of such shortfall. On that day,
the amount based on the audited accounts fell short of the
Guaranteed Sum by approximately HK$30,748,000. Therefore, Mr.
Tsang and Mr. Kong are liable to pay the shortfall to the Company.

The amount are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these amounts will
be recovered in the next twelve months from 31st December,
2010. As a result, the amounts are classified as current assets. The
corresponding amount has been credited directly to the capital
reserve in the equity as deemed contribution from equity
participants.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

20.

21.

FEW B SR FR 1B

RE—FE ARAANFEFERR SR
BEE(NGEED RISEREL
EEDOHERAR 2 EEERAFF
ZEINREBEARRR RS L —
i Rt F R AXAR 2 EEWH
FMEl Y 2B REAR AR RE
ROBEBEEHIGI AT ECENS
A &) (‘B FEUnited Non-Ferrous (Overseas)
Limited R EMB AR R =T —TF
TZRAZRZEEZREEEEFET
B 48 %8189,674,00078 JT ([ 1R 7% 42
B MR E—ZFTF+-_A=A2
ERBBEINRELE AZEER
TIHREREGBARARRZNZTRE
HEs—F¥ - REH BELEZR
ERfECHERRBABTREZHY
/330,748,000 7T © E It - B 5 4 KT
EEBREAMARAREZNTR ZEHEE -

EWMBEARAR 28 RAREH
BEEAANEFRA  XEUHE
BR-E—BF+=A=t— B
ZARKT @A RKE - A H
BEDOBARDEE  BERED
EE AN 2 AR R
WERE LA -

FRIEEERE

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

RER LT RAE S

2010 2009
=L P I —==n%
HK$'000 HK$'000
ihchedl A% TR
322

The fair values of the listed equity securities are determined based
on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

LRAFEEEREZ A FEIERR
PR ¥R T 45 B 1 & E
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22.

23.

?‘v:\f\ = 2! 7J i‘% 3:::5& %% Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)
ET-TFF+-_A=-+—HLEFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22. RITHEHRRRE
Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range RITEHREN T0EE)7SE(ZE
from 0.01% to 0.75% (2009: 0.03% to 0.31%) per annum. T NF : 0.03E £0.31E) 2 T 5 F F
KR -
Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than TXHEHIINEBEEETR cEER
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out ANz B TIE 2 SRIT4 84
below:
CAD MNT RMB us$ Euro
hx ERER ARE E$ BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AE%Tr ATt B¥ETT A%
As at 31st December, 2010 RW-Z—-ZTE+-A=1+—H 6,421 1,473 175,992 5,527 7,116
As at 31st December, 2009 R-ZZAE+-_A=+—H 6,295 2,424 81 3,498 3,961
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. BB SRR R H M FEFRIE

IR FERT R

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based RAERERE REEEAHAE
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: EMEYZEMNE S ERFKER DT
T
2010 2009
b TR
HK$’'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Trade payables ERE SRR
0 to 30 days 0H £#30H 6,294
31 to 60 days 31H Z=60H 298
61 to 90 days 61H £90H 63
91 to 120 days 91H£120H 15
Over 120 days Hi®1208 351
7,305 7,021
Accruals Bt R R 13,574 12,691
Other payables E b & OB 9,967 6,454
Deposits received BWET& 2,823 2,205
33,669 28,371

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 60 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

BEEmMNFHEREHREOR - K&
B2 EM SRR EIRRE - AR
RATERNFEREERRABE
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23.

24.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. EHESRRRHEMEMFRIE
(continued) Di&@%‘l‘i’#(%)
Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other TYHINEBEBRER 2IHEEE
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set Mo BBIBEZ BBE ZFEFRRE
out below: fh FE WK IR
MNT RMB uss$ Euro
BEER AR% ER B 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ABT AT AET
As at 31st December, 2010 R-_E—FTF+-_HA=+—H 4,088 13 1,192 1,096
As at 31st December, 2009 R-ZZEZTALFE+-_A=+—H 1,109 163 874 1,101
CONVERTIBLE NOTES 24. TIRIRRE
On 5th November, 2008, the Company issued a 2% unsecured RZZFEZENF+—AREB AREM

convertible note to the immediate holding company of the
Company, CNNC Overseas, with a principal amount of
US$13,702,000 (“CN 2008"). The fixed note interest of US$68,512
will be settled quarterly. CN 2008 entitles CNNC Overseas to
convert it, in whole or in part of the principal amount, into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time prior to seven business days
preceding the maturity date on 4th November, 2011, at the
conversion price of US$0.23 per share, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments. If CN 2008 has not been converted, it will be
redeemed at par on 4th November, 2011. The effective interest
rate of the liability components of CN 2008 is 11.58%.

On 25th March, 2010, the Company issued another 2% unsecured
convertible note to CNNC Overseas with a principal amount of
US$53,281,853 (“CN 2010") in connection with the acquisition of
Ideal Mining as set out in note 29(i). CN 2010 entitles CNNC
Overseas to convert it, in whole or in part of the principal amount,
into ordinary shares of the Company at any time prior to seven
business days preceding the maturity date on 24th March, 2013, at
the conversion price of HK$9.50 per share, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments. The number of shares to be issued upon conversion is
determined by dividing the principal amount of CN 2010 to be
converted (translated into HK$ at a fixed rate of HK$7.77 to
US$1.00) by the conversion price of HK$9.50, subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments. If CN 2010 has not been converted, it will be
redeemed at par on 24th March, 2013. At initial recognition, the
fair value of CN 2010 is estimated to be HK$413,356,000,
including the liability component of HK$340,737,000 at an
effective interest rate of 8.80% and the conversion option
amounted to HK$72,619,000 has been credited to convertible
notes equity reserve by reference to a valuation carried out on that
date by Greater China.

fR Az YN B 1T R & E13,702,000% 7T
M2%%E & | 7] % B’k E B(CN
2008)) - Bl E EE68512E LT T
BIE o fERESEFEAAR T - CN 2008
BAEATRZZE——F+—AEAE
HA B B {E 4 5 B DA AT I B %
BEZROZZETKASE 2 BRI
MEm AR QA 2 EiBR - fCN 2008
KFURB BIBER = ——F+—
AMABIZEETLAEE - CN 20088 (&
B2 BEEFER11.58E o

WM 29T E - R E—FF =
AZ+HAB ARARBRPZEINE
777N € %853,281,853% JT H92% & K 1F
B A% ZZ 95 ([ CN 2010]) LA Uy B8 78 48
B - EREFREHRRT - CN2010
RAEATRZ-_Z—==A=+mNH
E) EA B At & 5 B LA AT (A R A IR
A B T I 950t AR & 5 2 B
EHMEBRAEARFAZEBR R
BERERARBRT AT BERHBELM
SRIAZEHCN 201078 £ & LA 78 #9.50
T2 BRE (AEEERBE7. 7708
1.00E 7T Hr &) ° WCN 2010K F A &
BoBER - E—=F=A_-+mMA
REE T AER - £ 458 R K - CN
20002 A ¥ E W A A
413,356,0007T * B & 7 #340,737,000
THBEHN REERF %X 58.80% -
EBBEEEZR TG BEBE
72,619,0007T A #2 f& 4 B 5t A Al # IR
SRR -
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AR a

=N ~ 7T ﬁ'% 3:::5& i% MTJL E\I (continued #&)

T-TE+-AST—HLER

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
The movement of the liability component of CN 2008 and CN 2010

25.

24. TR ERE @

CN 2008 CN 20108 & & 5

is set out as below: T
CN 2008 CN 2010 Total
CN 2008 CN 2010 & #
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T EETR BT T
At 1st January, 2009 T T Ly =gy 83,284 T 83284
Interest charge MEZH 9,473 9,473
Interest paid BERFE (2,478) (2,478)
At 31st December, 2009 R_ZEZAF+ZA=+—H 90,279 — 90,279
Issue during the year REFENRNIEIT — 340,737 340,737
Interest charge M B 11,183 25,082 36,265
Interest paid EEPELESS (2,124) — (2,124)
At 31st December, 2010 R_ZE-—TF+_A=+—H 99,338 365,819 465,157
2010 2009
=L P —TEhE
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERGE 2O 365,819 90,279
Non-current liability ErREHEaE 99,338 _
Current liability B e A 465,157 90,279
UNSECURED BANK LOAN 25. HEIXAPER "%%
The unsecured bank loan carries floating-rate interest at Hong BERRITERZFELREBRITRA

Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR") plus 0.45% and is repayable
at the end of each interest period. Amount repaid may be redrawn

immediately. The intervals of each interest period vary from one to

three months.

The average effective interest rate of the Group’s unsecured bank
loan is 0.64% (2009: 0.60%) per annum.

2B

EH/E (F%R&@E 17 B % 4% 8J) pn0.45

B R AR
TBR S BNE AR ER o
RHENF—EAE=@A

& F

ANERZ BIEIFRT
i%%z%o.ml‘@ggn

CEMBHRBE -2BEER

| B HIR 2 [

o

RZBERFEY
F: 06E)
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 26. EEHIE

The following are the deferred tax liability (asset) recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

CHRBZETEBECEHEBEREEE) A
ERBOIMAEFEZESHOT

Convertible

Tax loss notes Total

BIEBE TRERER &

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ok e BT T BT T

At 1st January, 2009 RZEENF—H—H — 4,025 4,025
Credited to profit or loss RIBEETA — (1,398) (1,398)
At 31st December, 2009 WZZEZARF+-A=+—8H — 2,627 2,672
Credited to profit or loss RIBEETA (2,539) (5,633) (8,172)
Credited to equity AREZ — 11,982 11,982
At 31st December, 2010 W_ZE-ZFF+_A=+—H (2,539) 8,976 6,437

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$104,435,000 (2009: HK$60,179,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses of HK$89,047,000
(2009: HK$60,179,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. Unrecognised tax losses of HK$4,497,000 (2009:
HK$4,407,000) will gradually expire from 2011 to 2015 (2009:
from 2010 to 2014). The remaining tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1st January, 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$6,364,000 (2009:
HK$1,296,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RMERL  NEBORDAHBE
B H) B 104,435,000 (Z T AF -
75 #60,179,0007T) - Al AR K EH B &
i Fl) o B R N BE TEOR B 12 5 B 2RR
MW T KB EABE
89,047,000 (= & T N, F: & &
60,179,00070) RIELEFH B E E © K
TR E 1B B 4,497,000 (= F
TN F B ¥4,497,000T) R —Z —
TFEE-FE-HAF(ZETNF BHZ
T-TFE_FT-WF)KRADE - 8
TR EIE A ER A o

BEPECEMESHRERAT B2
TNE—A—B# BRRPEHK
BARREMBEZEFMERZ K
BHKEMNH - P EK B AR Z Rt
i Al FE Al 2 B 2= 8RB 5 156,364,000
BT (ZZTZENF 1,296,000 7T) -
REBMI KRR ZERBERE S BB
RIELBE RERAEBEEEH B
PEREHE R BEEBEREE
R RE T g R T B ARRER o
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?‘véf\ é\ E]f i‘% 3:::5& %% Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. =X
Number of ordinary shares Amount
LEBREE &8
2010 2009
e L TN F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Ordinary shares of BREES0.017T
HK$0.01 each EORER N
Authorised: VEE
At 1st January and ®n—H—H
31st December rE+=Z—RA=4+—
H oL LR [0 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BBITEREE
At st January R—A—H CPLRIFENEN 379,168,308 3,792
Issue of new shares BITHR — 50,000,000 500
At 315t December = =l 429,168,308

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 8th July, 2009, an
aggregate of 50,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company were placed by CNNC Overseas to independent investors
at the price of HK$8.78 per share (the “Placing”). On completion
of the Placing, CNNC Overseas subscribed for an aggregate of
50,000,000 new shares in the Company at the price of HK$8.78
per share so as to raise further working capital for the Company
and broaden its capital base. These shares ranked pari passu with
the then existing shares in all respects. The net proceeds from the
subscription of approximately HK$427 million were used for the
Group's business developments and general working capital.

28. RESERVES

The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount of
the share premium of the subsidiaries as at the time of a group
reorganisation effected on 13th December, 2002 (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

28.

BEZZEZENFLANRLHEE
Wi RBINETRRG B K878
TTHER RABYRRESEHEAR
7]50,000,0000% & 420.017% 7T /9 & i i
(& - TRESE  RZEIE
TR MHBESTSTHEBRREA X
7N A A]50,000,0000% #7 A% 17+ #5 DA #E —
THERARAEREELESRIBERER
MER ZEROHEERBEERNE
EFEABRSHA - REMEBRIE
H B8 4 & 75 #5427,000,0007T ¢ #E 1 A
EERAREBEER—REEESZ
)EH °

it

TR DRFEHEER_ZEZ_F+=A
+oRETEBEA(EEEA]
B ARRIMARGN R EHBEE -

EHFERERARESEEEERENEB A
B AEEAEER R B B IREE B
BARMBETRNEBERZIEZRE -
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28.

29.

RESERVES (continued) 28. f#fEe
As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, RIBEFHBEEZEZEZREOEE  EF
subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) are BB A R (TR EKTE AR
required to maintain a general reserve fund which is non- BRI —MEEES MZSHEER
distributable. Appropriations to this reserve fund are made out of ST AINIk - ZiFEEES DENMNE
profit for the year of the PRC subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial FEBARERFPEARSERA
statements which are prepared in accordance with the accounting iR BATE M EmMER 2 FRRF o
principles generally accepted in the PRC. The amount and allocation DPEBBELEOEEEHPHNE QA
basis are decided by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries JEZREFET RHEBEAAUD
annually and is not less than 10% of the profit for the year of the KA B ARRZEE 2 F R T
PRC subsidiaries for that year. The general reserve fund can be used 10% - —MEFEEESTHEAREBER
for expanding the capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by means of EBITEARPEMMER R 2 B -
capitalisation issue.
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ACQUISITION OF 29. WHEMIB AT HEEMH B A S
ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES B
(i)  On 23rd January, 2010, a directly wholly-owned subsidiary i) RZE—ZFF—A=Z+=H'2
of the Company and CNNC Overseas entered into a sale and AN —HEEEZENB AR HEF
purchase agreement pursuant to which CNNC Overseas RBINFILEE W B B
agreed to sell its entire 100% equity interest in Ideal Mining, ZENRE L EEEESE —
an investment holding company incorporated in the British FRBHEBRAESEMA LN
Virgin Islands, to the Group at a consideration to be satisfied BB AT 2HEBEITRALS
through issuance of CN 2010 to CNNC Overseas with a REM—HEEZEMB AR
principal amount of US$53,281,853. The principal asset of RENRARBITHFPZEINES
Ideal Mining is a 37.2% equity interest in SOMINA, a 53,281,8533 JT HICN2010 - 32 48
company incorporated in Niger with limited liability, which ¥ Z & E = ESOMINA (— AT
is the registered holder of the mining license for a uranium TR BBEMAINERAF)
mine located in the Agadez region of the Tchirozérine Z372%WEm - H2AUREH
department of Niger. Details of the transaction are set out HTchirozerine & Agadezit [& — &
in the Company " s circular dated 4th March, 2010. HERRTAIZENELIEBA
FERGFABENARAEE
—TE=AWBFEZBEA -
Ideal Mining is an investment holding company and SOMINA BREBEL - XREZERLIA
has not commenced commercial production of the mine. I B SOMINAK 7 15 18 A9 75 2 &
The Group acquired Ideal Mining from its immediate holding E o ARQ A LAKI90% F & E A F
company, CNNC Overseas, at a consideration which is about EMNRERSEEEZE - WER
90% of the fair value of the net assets acquired. The BHKEEENATECHANE
difference between the fair value of the consideration paid BHHERIERTZBINERE
and the fair value of net assets acquired is deemed as capital Bt BEEMWAAELRRHE RS
contribution from CNNC Overseas, which is credited directly RZEBE—ZF=ZA-F+HHZEK
to the capital reserve in the equity. The transaction has been
completed on 25th March, 2010.
HK$'000
BT T
Consideration transferred at fair value: BEREATE
Issuance of CN 2010 F1TCN 2010 413,356
Asset recognised at the date of acquisition: RUHE B & EFE
Interest in an associate acquired WHE R B R Al 2 A 464,079
Deemed contribution from immediate holding company BHEERARWE SN E R (50,723)
413,356
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ACQUISITION OF
ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(ii)

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group
acquired approximately 69.5% of the issued share capital of
Western Prospector from independent third parties for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$143,589,000.
Western Prospector was a company incorporated in Canada
with its shares listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange Venture
Exchange. This acquisition was accounted for as acquisition
of a jointly controlled entity and the assets and the associated
liabilities of the Western Prospector Group. The acquisition of
Western Prospector Group was not considered as a business
acquisition as the activities of the Western Prospector Group
are the holding of exploration licenses in radioactive minerals
in Mongolia and investment in jointly controlled entity. The
acquisition was completed on 29th June, 2009.

29. WEEKMIBAT EEHMEBAS
R
iy REBEEZZTTANFI+ZA=1-—
HEE AEEMRBILE=HK
BAIFRABEBITRERAY
69.5% - #21X {8 49143,589,000/%
oA ARA—HBRMEKXEZE
kL znaEl EROREZRE
BEHERGFEIER S L™ o It
EUWRE AW E LR EHEE R
ARAAEENEEREBRE
BEAR WEAPLAAEELT
RAEZEKWE ARAFAFRE
ENHEEBRFAR HEST
MR RBETAIERRER
EHEENERE ZWEERZ
EEAERNA-FTNABREK -

HK$'000
BT oT
Assets acquired, including the jointly controlled entity RUWER WEZEE &
(see note 16), and liabilities recognised at the date of ARG EE (MM
acquisition: 16) RIERZAEWT
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRE 11,841
Exploration and evaluation assets BREERTHEEE 154,633
Interest in jointly controlled entity ARG T B e = 30,460
Other receivables and prepayments H 4th jE W k8 K FE S 5RIE 3,125
Bank balances and cash BITHEHBRRIE 2 25,911
Other payables and accruals H th & < 018 F FE 5T R K (1,418)
224,552
Non-controlling interests LERRER (63,071)
Net assets acquired Friele 2 & EFE 161,481
Consideration transferred: AT 5 A
Cash He 143,589
Transaction costs incurred EEZRHHA 17,892
161,481
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: WEEEXAZRESREFH
Cash consideration paid BEffcReRE (143,589)
Transaction costs paid B 2R KA (17,892)
Bank balances and cash acquired Frig 2 IR1THE B RIS 28,982
(132,499)

Following the completion of the above acquisition and in
August 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 30.5%
equity interest in Western Prospector, at a cash consideration
of Canadian dollar (“CAD") 9,357,755 (equivalent to
approximately HK$63,071,000). Western Prospector then
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its
shares were delisted from the Toronto Stock Exchange
Venture Exchange on 18th August, 2009.

BEE LB TKE R F
NFENA REBWEAIDQA
LA T305%KE - BRERER
9,357, 7550 st ([ hn 7o) (4B & 7
#77 #63,071,0007T) ° 78 20 A &
BERBARRZZEMRB AR
MEKROR-ZEZAENA TN
HEZHRZESHFRXHAMAIER
DR -
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ACQUISITION OF 29. BB AT EEMBAS

ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(i) (continued)
Western Prospector Group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$7.8 million between the date of acquisition and at 31st
December, 2009.

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
for a period of ten years commencing 11th December, 2002
pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders passed on 11th
December, 2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to directors of the Company and eligible employees of the
Group. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to
eligible employees and directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally,
the Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside eligible advisors and consultants to the Company and its
subsidiaries at the discretion of its board of directors.

The number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme is
subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time;

(i) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme is not permitted to exceed 22,000,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at 6th January, 2003; and

(i)~ the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of such grant.

30.

iR

iy
RKREBEHE -—_TTHE+ =
A=+—B8H AF2EE
E A B 18 #9748 #7,800,0007T ©

HE B HE ST &
BE2ERER-_ZETET_F+ - A
T-—HBBNEERZER  AAFAK
mERESE(ZTED B2
—F+-_At+—BREAHtE X2
ENREAHARAEZERAEEA
B IE B E S 2R o BIRZETE
KAR AR ERET AR R REK
BARIAEREERESE  UREAX
RAIRMD - WIN REERZEER
E -ARAATAKEEBERE AR
AIREMBARMNIINAREERERK
BAAEER o

REZEATTFHRTZBROBERIT
SRR

() WRIFEZTE LKD) EMEM
BREE TR BERERR
HRBROHEE LR - &HTE8
BARBTEEEITRMDEAR
230% ;

iy FEAREBSAQRBRIESBLHE
AT - IREBZ A& R E A ER
BB RLERES R
Rth@e & %15 8B
22,000,000% - HHER T ZE =
F-—AANBARAFBHEITRA
Z210% : &

(i) RAEM—FATEEREMALT
REEREIR 2BROHEE - T
BREBRARAARELAHE %
TR Z21% °
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31.
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FEBERER A A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the higher of (i) the
average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the Company
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant; (i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
on the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary
shares of the Company.

Any options granted under the Scheme must be exercised during
such option period as may be determined and notified by the
directors of the Company, which shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of acceptance of the option.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
unsecured bank loan and convertible notes, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure annually.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company assess the
annual budget prepared by management of the Company. Based
on the proposed annual budget, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. The directors of the Company also balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues of the Company as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

30.

31.

lé‘v?/\,ﬁ%%i&% Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)
TFE+-_RA=+—HLEEFE

MRl
REMAREERERAIAE®IT
SHEARE-TEEHARAESE
ﬁ'FﬁxﬂﬁFTW?%%'WK
NRAEBEAEZRHBHATARR

SBZ2FHWTE: (AR AEBRK
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32. £MTHR
(a) €EMIRZEA

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

(b)

2010 2009
“E-FF ek
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Financial assets SHEE
Fair value through profit or loss held for EAFEFTAEBED
trading FEHE 367 322
Loans and receivables (including cash and B 5k K E R IE
cash equivalents) (PREReREEED) 380,338 652,758
Financial liabilities LRIEE
Amortised cost B4 35 A K

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from shareholders,
investments held for trading, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, unsecured bank loan and convertible
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include credit risk, market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk) and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from shareholders and bank
balance and cash. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations as at 31st December, 2010 in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the
credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group only
extends credit to customers based upon careful evaluation of
the customers’ financial conditions and credit history.

(b) MBEBEZBERBR

AEBEZTIESHMTABER
WE 5 RN E o FRUCGRIA - H5
EEERE RITEHRERD
JEA B 5 R 5% K B b FE AN SRR
BR—FATHEE 2 EBEHA
RUTERERALRRE ZFD
BMTAZFBERE M ERE -
TXHINZEFERTAMRBZ
[\ f K &F fE B 2 BRER o B PR
EENEEERER - ARERE
RERBBHRBUEE I E -

15 & /a B
AEBITESREERRERE
W E 5 8RR N H b R U R IR A
rRERREFEM R_F—
TE+-_A=1+—H fWx54%
TREEBTHEME  BIAEER
ERHNCHERTBEEMAK
¥ZeEREERRANGEEY
BRARINEZZFEERE
B RREEERR AEBE
BEEKNYGLEEEERE
RE -FEEMZRAEMERTRE
B AREREREUR £ 17 B UK @ 38
HER AEEERFRIGE
FEo# BRI BEFEERRE -
TREPRMHEER-

85



|

-

CNNC International Limited
FiZER AR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 871 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of

each individual receivable at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s exposure to bad debts
and concentration risk is reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 29% of the
total trade receivables as at 31st December, 2010 (2009:
57%) was due from the Group's five largest customers.
Those five largest customers are reputable electrical appliance
company, automotive traders and agents with long business
history with the Group. Management performs periodic
evaluations and customer visits to ensure the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant. The historical
experience in the collection of trade receivables from the five
largest customers falls within the expectation of the directors.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

32. 2T Hw®
(b) BABEMBEEBERBR®

15 EE B =)

AN REBR R ERREBEHRS
TE B Bl e Y SR IE AT U [B] 5 58 - 1@
RERTT KL SEERZH
WEBE Btms  AoaE
ERBE AREBAIZEERENE
Esd Rk BEY -

AEBEHEESPER  RE
BR-_ET—ZF+-_A=+—H
ZEWE SHERBER E29%
TETRE57%)KRANREE
AARBEF -ZAABRFRBEEBR
FBEBERNFAERIH
EREBA BASEERZIRA
XBBEER - BEETHETTE
RAEGEPF UBRAEEAR
ZERRBITTEKN - EBAK
EP B EWE SRR EA
MGEZUNEERIREESTZ
TEEf o

MR ZHEFREBREER
ARBIERSEETRLE
BERFEBEZRIT  BWRITHER
ZIEERBER -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk management

While most of the Group's operations are transacted in
the functional currencies of the respective group
entities, the Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently
has not formulated any hedging policies against its
exposure to currency risk. However, the Group
manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring

Report 2010

T-TrER

lé‘v%:\ é ,H\Z’f ﬁ% 3:::5& i Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

32. 2T Hw®
(b) MEEMBEEHERBER®

i 15 /2l B

(i)

S B R BT

BENSEEERME -
REBREBDEHIIAT
REBET HAKEE
TETUINEHERS -
AEERBEIERAELEE
2, B il 7 AE 7] ¥R BSK -
A AKEDEBEY

the movement of the foreign currency rate and will EEIEONEE R B EEE A
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure G L B o
should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets REBEUNNEFBEZEE
and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign BEIE¥BER M ER
currencies at the end of both reporting periods are as EHIR ZEBREMAENT ¢
follows:
HKD CAD MNT RMB uss Euro
BT mx ERER AR ES BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEFT EETT BT BT BBTrT BETx
As at 31st December, R-E—ZF
2010 +=-A=+—8
Assets BE — 6,421 2,428 175,992 6,123 8,408
Liabilities 8 1& 16,000 — 4,088 131 1,192 1,096
As at 31st December, R-ZEZNF
2009 +-A=+—H
Assets EE — 6,295 3,940 81 4,222 6,068
Liabilities 8 1& 16,000 — 1,109 163 874 1,101
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2009: 5%) increase and decrease in US$ against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2009: 5%)
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary items at the
end of the reporting period and adjusted for a 5%
(2009: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates a decrease in loss where US$
weakens 5% (2009: 5%) against the relevant
currencies. For a 5% (2009: 5%) strengthening of US$
against the relevant currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on loss. Since HK$ is
pegged to US$, relevant foreign currency risk is
minimal and excluded from the calculation below.

32. 2T Hw®
(b) MEEMEEHERBEER®

745 JE Bg ()
() SNEEE R EE ()
BEE DT

TRAFMAEBRHETH
HENEFBS%(ZEZ
NE:5%) 2 BEE 5%
(ZEZENF :5%) AAE
ERABRNEEEREABE
NS RS BT A R BRRR S
hE-IREEEHIE
EXr g R2AEEZE
ZHE-HRERESNER
BRI E B4R A R B B LA
SNETIEZEMIBER H
[EE5% (ZZEZTNF  5%)
BEER AR EHIEE
TUHR A E B R E% (=
BT NE 5%)KEE
BFR LB XK AR
EBFAES% (ZETNF
5% ) AJREEE 1B A [
ERROTE -HRAEK
HEETTHEN WEBEER
[2 B 13 (K, - DA 5T & BF IR
TEIEER -

CAD MNT RMB Euro
mx BERER ARE BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BT AT A%Tr
2010 —E—ZF
Decrease (increase) in loss FERNEERD GEm
for the year 306 (79) 8,374 348
2009 —ETAF
Decrease (increase) in loss FERNEERDGEm
for the year 300 135 (4) 237




32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank balances, unsecured
bank loan and convertible notes. Bank balances and
unsecured bank loan at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Details of the
Group’s bank balances and unsecured bank loan are
disclosed in notes 22 and 25 respectively.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not expose to significant cash flow
interest-rate risk on financial instruments as the
interest of the Group’s financial liabilities and
fluctuation in interest rate are insignificant. Also, the
directors of the Company consider those interest
bearing bank deposits are within short maturity period
and the effect on fluctuation in interest rate is
insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to the liability component of the fixed
rate convertible notes.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings.

The following table details Group’s contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 38 R B #E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2010 HEZ T —ZTF+ A=+ —-HILFE

32. 2T Hw®
(b) MEEMBEEHERBER®

45 B BE ()

(i) T
REBZFEEEHERE
ZHHEBITESG  BIEKA
RITERRATRBREERS
o RFEBERFBEZR
THRAREERRITER
BHASEEMHRE R
EMNERR AKEET
o R EIEIFIRITE R
BRI M 22 X253 & -

R 5R 835 B 3 4 A (] A R
HHBR-AM BEE
SERNXARERER
R E BEHPE AN R @R

AR AKE SR E ENF
ERAMENEEMAR
B-RASBEYEMHE
RESREMNEEAR - It
S KRRBEERR &
EHBRRITERDERE Y
WEH - BN RRESHHFE
EIEEINE -

A % B 75 3 B 5 o 4
BEEZEBESHEHA
TEFRER -

B & & g
REBRBESRRE  AEE
SEBRAERBEGARE FE
VWEREEERRTRZKFE
NBENASREZ2EEMTES
FRERERERDZTZE -E
BEEeEBHRERZER -

TERAINAEEHFETESRE
BERBEGEERGRZ A OH
RIFN - ZERETDRBEAEE
RAKEBREESRAEAB IR
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. £ TH®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BMEEMGEEHERBE®
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) BB EE )
Weighted
average Total Total
effective 61to undiscounted carrying
interestrate  0to30days 31to 60 days 365days  1-5years cash flows amount
FHB
i axs
FHHE  0FNE  3F60H  61E365H 1555 wE RESE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Bol B¥TT  B%Tn BETn B%TR BETn  RETX

As at 31st December, 2010 R-F-%&

+ZA=t+-H
Trade and other payables ENEFENR
Ef Mz 16,174 17,212 17212
Unsecured bank loan BR-EREEER
LEERETER 06 16,072 - - - 16,072 16,000
Convertible notes TEREE 94 - 358 107,813 438,863 547,034 465,157

32,46 JAL) 108,550 438,863 580,378 498,429

As at 31st December, 2009 R-BEAE

t-A=+-H
Trade and other payables ERESERR
AR — 11,722 361 366 — 12,449 12,449
Unsecured bank loan BAR-EREHEER
JEERBTER 06 16,096 — — — 16,096 16,000
Convertible notes THREE 116 - 531 1,593 107,992 110,116 90,279
27818 892 1,959 107,992 138,661 118,728

reEBELRAMENTE
ESE R TV IEE S T
MEBE Y EREHAEER
22 FEMETARNTENE
28 -

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value (© /Afl?-ﬁ _
tHEELRSBREBEZATE
BEwT

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

o REAEBREMHEFRGMHRER
ABRRBMEERE R
BE D2EMBMSE
BREETQAFE R

o the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

s H#eREELERAE
ZRFETIABBER SR
ENMAR/EEZEERAR
ZEBBAEE -

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.
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32.

33.

34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value (continued)
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

The fair value measurement recognised on the consolidated
financial statements subsequent to initial recognition with
respect to the Group’s investments held for trading belongs
to level 1, being fair value derived from quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

EFEFT_A=ZT-BLFE

32. €T Hmw
(0 2A2FEm@m
RRAREERE RNEAVHER
RANRBHEANERINEZ2RE
ErcRHAaEREmERALQYF
BHEE

RAREBEEERATE 77
SHRGEGDYBRRER
I ATEHENBRE—BER
B E MBI A E R AT R
745 o 4518 5 (R 98 B) (8.1
AT -

33. BEXRKIE

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of

property, plant and equipment: BEARRX
Authorised but not contract for EREBRETLY
Contracted for but not provided BRI4EREE

B E - BE MR E R

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for rented premises which fall due as
follows:

2010 2009
- Sk ol —_TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETT BT
1,173
16,779
17,952
34. EEHERE

RFERE AREREREADE
AIMNH A BEEEMEE  RTIF

1= £hH

—FR
F_FEFRF(R

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

MBI ArREEARKERER
THASERNT
2010 2009
=L FEEl “TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
4,855
EEEMTF) 5,095
9,950

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office and factory premises. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of 3 years and rentals are fixed and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

REHEFREAKERES THA
EMEURBE T REFEMSES -
FHMREFH/F -HEHEE - B
BRI AB SN RETLEM B
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35.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated in a

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all its
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable in
the future years.

The Group is also required to make contributions to state-
management retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government based on a certain percentage of the monthly payroll
costs of the employees of its subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group has
no other obligations under the state-management retirement
benefit schemes in the PRC other than the contribution payable.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to the
relevant retirement benefit schemes are as follows:

35.

B KBRS
AEBR-_ZETETEFT+_A—HEE
HEBMBAEKEESE —HAH
MABeE((RESTE]) -8
© &8I R 1% 58 Bl M R TR @ & B HIE
Al AEeITEEREREM - BE
CETEIMEEMBUERALES - B®
TEBNES FABE BREBRES
SFEIMARA BEERERERESBAR
RAEEOLE R EEL KR
EEpRESTEEENE—BETR
RAREH 81 /E P &R 3K I 08 it
OB AR A R R F [E B B o

AEENARTEBRFEHNEE R
KeRMAE RPEMBLRA ZE
BAHKANETADL  tEHE -
AEERTERBETFENEERKS
&I 1F B RSN - 3 B AT ] Al 5K
8-

Py A& BB A BEKIER B
HRGENT -

MPF Scheme 5818 & 5t &l
State-management retirement benefit schemes B4 iRk 4 it &I

2010 2009
“E—TF ks
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
201

2,965

3,166
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36.

37.

GOVERNMENT GRANT
During the year ended 31st December, 2005, the Group received a

government grant of approximately HK$8,335,000 in relation to
the land use right of a piece of land situated in the PRC acquired by
the Group during that year. The amount has been deducted from
the carrying amount of the prepaid lease payments as set out in
note 14, which was also reclassified as assets classified as held for
sale as detailed in note 12. The amount is transferred to income in
the form of reduced amortisation charge over the term of the
prepaid lease payments. This policy has resulted in a credit to
income in the current year of HK$167,000 (2009: HK$167,000). As
at 31st December, 2010, an amount of HK$7,403,000 (2009:
HK$7,570,000) remained to be amortised and included in assets
held for sale.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The following transactions and balances were entered into during
the year or outstanding at the end of the reporting period
respectively.

(i) Remuneration of directors and other members of
key management
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

36.

37.

BB 2

HE-_ZTTERF+ _A=Z+—8I*F
B AEBREFARBEAMCNFEH
— 8 1 Hb 2 + b {55 PR A M EXER AT AR B
& 4 78 ¥8,335,0007T &0 B sE14FT
B ZEXBEEABEMNEERERR
BRI - ZRBENESEEMER
FIEMBELEEEEN - ZERER
T8 44 %8 & 8 2 T2 & 20 LA S0 R B 6H
THZAREBBEWA - LBRER
B 167,000 (Z T T h F 0 B
167,000) st AR FEWA - R ZF
—ZTEHE+-_A=Z+ B B
7,403,000Cc(= & & N, F 1 & &
7,570,0007C) M R BE4H R BB E 5 1E

AREANLTHE
RENRBEBHL  AEETLHA
TR B RBEMT :

() ESREMITEEEERS
Z2i&

74 HA4E A
RAIRIEAE T

Short-term benefits

Post-employment benefits

The remuneration paid for Mr. Tsang and Mr. Kong
amounted to HK$7,204,000 (2009: HK$7,024,000) for the
year. Their remunerations were not included in the above
disclosure.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

ERNEFRAMEEEE@A
BrEemT
2010 2009
=L I I —==h%
HK$'000 HK$'000
el BT
13,730 10,210
114 44
13,844 10,254
AW 5 BT 5 2 B

B 17,204,000 (= T A
£ 8 #7,024,0007T) © fib {3 HY
FHTBEEUNLEZHE-

FHEZEE@EREFTREELT

BAB@EBNKRBERETSBEE
BEWRENHH -
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances with other state-
controlled entities in the PRC

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
CNNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Other
than the transactions and balances as disclosed in note 20
and apart from the issue of convertible notes as set out in
note 24 and the related effective interest expenses of
approximately HK$36,265,000 (2009: HK$9,473,000) to its
immediate holding company in which interest paid amounted
to HK$2,124,000 (2009: HK$2,478,000), there was a
deemed contribution amounting to HK$50,723,000 made by
the immediate holding company, which was related to the
acquisition of a subsidiary through the issuance of convertible
notes as set out in note 29.

The Group has also entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements with certain banks and
financial institutions which are state-controlled entities in its
ordinary course of business. In view of the nature of those
banking transactions, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that separate disclosure would not be
meaningful.

38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

The acquisition of Ideal Mining as set out in note 29 was satisfied

through the issuance of a convertible note CN 2010.

,Zvr\‘?ﬂ\ 1/5\ E]f 7% i& 2% M—JL EI (continued #%)

37. EAEANTHE®

(i)

38.

HbEHEBERENEEZ

X5 R &G

AN B AR & 7 A B U 45 )
RETEREERAZID o F
A BRETRE20FTE A 2 5 K f4 R
Misr24Fr & BT IR E &, - A
RAEEEERARRZEINZ
- 4975 #36,265,000C (—ZEZT A,
@ 1 7 #59,473,0007T) 2 48 B
ERTZESPERNANERABE
2,124,000C( = & & h F:

2,478,000)) #I - A £50,723,000
B ZBIEFE D EZEER AT
YEH - TH N FE29FT B8 KB 1B
BITAMRERmMERE A -

AEBMAN-—REBKBESE
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39, AATIKMEBASHTE

COMPANY
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of both RRERREHE ARG Z2EBHE
reporting periods are as follows: NARFEWT

Proportion of nominal

Issued and fully paid value of issued/registered
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation share/registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERTRYERE, AADBHERT/
AR L sEMALIL WAL HERRE HEMRAEES LG IRER
Directly Indirectly
HE &
2010
—¥-%F
%
United Non-Ferrous (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares US$30,400 Investment holding
("BVI")
EREARES 58 A%30,400% T BERR
Dongguan United Metal Products Co., Ltd. PRC Registered capital Manufacture and trading
(“Dongguan United”) (note i) HK$40,000,000 of die casting parts
REENREHRBRAF hE M RA EFRHECRER
(TREEM]) (M) 7 40,000,0007T
Emeelt Mines LLC People of Mongolia Registered capital US$10,000 Mineral exploration in
Mongolia
B 4 410,000% 7T REERE
Ideal Mining BVI Registered capital US$390,000 Investment holding
BEEE ERERAREE FEff & 78390,0005 7T BERR
United Castings (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. PRC Registered capital Manufacture and trading
("United Castings”) (note i) HK$17,750,000 of die casting parts
FRMECBERERRR(RERE]) FE 1 AR 77 #517,750,0007 EARHECRER
(B )
United Metal Products (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. PRC Registered capital Inactive
(“United Shanghai”) (note i) US$5,900,000 (note ii)
HNESERHE (LB BERAA FE A& 45,900,000% 7T LmE
(T8 L8 (M) (Bt i)
United Metals Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,602 Trading of die casting parts
EHREERDA EE LEIRAE,062T HELRBER
United Non-Ferrous Corporation Mauritius Registered capital US$1 Trading of die casting parts
EBRF BaE-ENETH HELBER
Western Prospector Mongolia LLC People of Mongolia Registered capital US$10,000 Mineral exploration in
Mongolia
L) &4 410,000 7T REERER
Notes: B 3
(i) Dongguan United, United Shanghai and United Castings are established in the PRC (i) R REEERRERBEATEREKIH
as wholly foreign owned enterprises. HNERE -
(if) As at 31st December, 2010, the capital of United Shanghai was paid up as to (ii) RZE—ZTF+-_A=+—8 BEBELEBZHA
US$5,900,000 (2009: US$3,870,000). fi% A% £5,900,000% 7T (= % £ /1, & : 3,870,000
7o) °
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end EARFEFR I &M B QT
of the year. TIEREBES -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the EERAMINAESRETIELELRE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results, assets and XE AERABZARRMEBAR -
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, EERRIEHEMMBAR 2 F1EE
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive BRI °
length.
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Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for each of thefive WU N AAXEBHEZ _ZET—ZFTF+ = A

years ended 31st December, 2010:

ST-BRLERAEFERFZIUBHE

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31st December,
BE+-A=1+—BHILEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZEERE ZZEEEF ZTENF ZZENF ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT ABTRI BETr A% Tr BRELaR

Revenue I 2% 242,831 234,919 209,082 136,571
Profit (loss) before taxation B AR R (B518) 14,170 (4,394) (20,430) (41,655) (62,856)
Income tax (expense) credit FEwH (X)) &R (754) 38 713 1,265
Profit (loss) for the year 4 7335 F (5 18) 13,416 (4356)  (19,717)  (40,390)
Earnings (loss) per share SRAEF (FHE)

— basic (HK cents) — EARGE) 6.1 (2.0 (8.1) (10.1) m
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SERAIE

As at 31st December,
R+=-ZH=+-—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EERF ZETLEF —ZZTT)N\F —TENF [k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT AB%Tr AETr BB TT BELER

Total assets AERE 256,606 240,890 613,513 994,918
Total liabilities BERE (63,519)  (51,216)  (143,873)  (137,323)
Equity attributable to owners KR RI#EE A

of the Company JE 15 HE 28 193,087 189,674 469,640 857,595




